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RESIGNATION BY MEMBER 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI) V. 
NARAYANASAMY : Before I call the next 
speaker, there is an announcement. I have to 
inform the hon. Members thst the Chairman 
has received a letter from Shri Vishwasrao 
Ramrao Patil, a Member representing the State 
of Maharashtra, resigning his seat in Rajya 
Sabha. The Chairman has accepted his 
resignation with effect from today, the 14th 
May, 1993. 

SHORT DURATION DISCUSSION 

REPORT OF THE ONE-MAN COM-

MISSION OF INQUIRY, HEADED BY 

JUSTICE J.S. VERMA, TO ENQUIRE 

INTO THE ASSASSINATION OF SHRI 

RAJIV GANDHI FORMER PRIME 

MINISTER OF INDIA—CON ID. 
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In this manier, the entire responisbi-lity, 
from selecting the scene of the meeting at 
Sriperumbudur to making all the 
arrangements, was entrusted to M. 
Chandrashekhar." 

"Mr. A.G. Das, Chief Organiser of the 
Sriperumbudur meeting made a surprise 
announcement at the last minute asking 
those warting to garland Mr. Rajiv Gandhi 
line up along the red carpet." 
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"An attitude of instransigence of the 
Congress partymen and its oiganisen, 
their concern being to encash Rajiv 
Gandhi's visit to improve the election 
prospects remaining apathetic to his 
security needs........... ". 
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"The responsibility for tbc disorder-liness 
at the venue is that AJ. Doss as indicated." 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI MD. 
SALIM): Will you finish now ? 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH (Maharashtra) : 
I request the hon. Vice-Chairman please, not 
to set a sttingent time limit on such a matter 
which is of prime importance  as  far  as  we  
are  concerned. 

SHRI RAM DAS AGARWAL : You should 
have suggested this at the Business Advisory 
Committee. You were sitting there at that 
time. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI MD. 
SALIM) : You see, we have to depend upon 
the time limit. 

SHRI RAM- DAS AGARWAL : There has 
to be a time-limit for everybody. There cannot 
be an exception for anybody. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : Mr. Vice-
Chairman, Sir, there is already a request from 
us, from the Members of the Congress party 
and also from some of the Members of the 
Opposition that the time that has been allotted 
is only three hours. In the Lok Sabha they 
have been discussing it for more than six 
hours. Therefore, this being a sentimental sub-
ject, on which all the hon Members would like 
to express their views the time may be 
extended for this discussion 

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA : But it has   to 
be for everybody, for all  parties. 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH : Obviously. It 
should be for everybody. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY: Mr. Vice-
Chairman, Sir, I accept the proposal for 
extension of time. Let it be made applicable to 
everybody. It is important. 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH- Thank vou 
very much. 

 

SHRI   V.      NARAYANASAMY:     Till 
everybody speaks. 

SHRI DIGVIJAY SINGH-  We  can sit 
tomorrow. 
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THE  VICE-CHAIRMAN      (SHRI  MD 
SALIM) : We can sit till tomorrow. No 
problem. 

 

SHRI RAM   DAS AGARWAL: We win 

also change. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY: We have so tar 
put up with this apporich 1 do not want to use 
strong words. Mr. Ahlu-walia, I challenge you 
to go and say this in the Patna bye-election 
and retain your deposit there. That is the 
place. 

That is the place where these words will be 
put to test, but not in the Rajya Sabha. I 
challenge you to 30 and light in the Patna by-
;lection. 

SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA : 1 know that. 

 

"Here is Rajiv Gandhi,  who is executive 
Prime Minister of India." 

SHRI  S.  JAIPAL REDDY   Mr.    Vice-
Chairman, can all   these things go on ? 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY: If tnis is your 
tone, then all of us will react in the same 
manner. 

*Expunged as ordered by the Chair. 
Transliteration in Arabic Script. 
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SHRIMATI KAMLA SINHA (Bihar): 
What is this nonsense? 

. ... (Interrupiions) .... 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY : To charge the 
then Prime Minister, Mr. Chandra Shekhar 
wilh having conspired to get Mr. Rajiv Gandhi 
murdered.. (interruptions).. At that time, Mr. 
Shiv Shanker was the I eader   of   the. . 
(interruptions) . . 

SHRI SIKANDER BAKHT : Is it the.. 
(interruptions). .memory. Is it the language 
.... (interruptions') .... 
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SHRI S JAIPAL REDDY : We will settle it 
at the polls. If you want to settle it in the 
streets or whichever place you choose, we are 
ready for it., (interruptions) . . E'ther street or 
polls, whichever way you do, we are ready. 

SHRI ASHIS SEN (West Bengal) . Mr.      
Vice-Chairrnan.. (interruptions) .... 

SHRIMATI   KAMLA      SINHA   :    Mr. 
Vice-Chairman, whatever, .(interruptions).. 

Mr. Ahluwalia spoke should be expunged 
from   the   proceedings   .. (interruptions).. 

SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA : I will go tc 
your constituency and speak there. 

 

THE  VICE-CltAIRMAN      (SHRI   MD. 
SALIM):   Mr.   Ahluwalia,   you       restrain 
yourself.  

 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY : Let somebody 
on behalf of the Congress party. . 
(interruptions).. Let there be a final 
settlement. 

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: When Mi 
Suresh Pachouri :was speaking, there was 
quiet and peace in this House. He was 
levelling charges. He was putting this across 
but in a language which could be heard, which 
could be tolerated. Now, it is a serious matter. 
Let us all discuss it in the spirit in which this 
discussion has been sought by all Members of 
the House cutting across parky lines. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRT MD. 
SALIM): This is> what is expected. 

SHRIMATI KAMLA SINHA: What about 
expunging is remarks ? 

 

SHRIMATI KAMLA SINHA : Whatever 
unparliamentary words Mr. Ahluwalia spoke, 
should he expunged must he expunged from 
the proceedings. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY : I want 
somebody from the Congress party who is 
responsible to rise and say whether we should 
remain in the House or go. Then, he can 
speak. We will go. 

SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA : That is up to 
you 

SHRI   S.   JAIPAL  REDDY   :   Because 
we      cannot      listen.. (interruptions.... 

SHRI S. S. AHLUWALIA : If you.. 
(interruptions) ..   ex-parte judgement. 

1098 RSS/94—24. 

SHRI S. JAIPJAL REDDY : Unparlia-
mentary referencje to. .(interruptions) . . 

should be expungid. 

SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA : There is 
nothing unparliamentary. You bring a 
dictionary of unparliamentary words. 
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SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA: Okay, I will not 
speak if this House does not want to listen to 
me. If they do not want to listen to these 
things, if they do not want me to speak, I can 
withdraw myself. There is no problem.   
(Interruptions). 

SHRI S. MUTHU MANI (Tamil Nadu): 
This House is not for any individual. The 
House should be respected. It is not an 
Individual's   problem.   (Interruptions). 

 
*Expunged as ordered by the Chair. 

Transliteration in Arabic Script. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : Sir, you 
have already given your ruling. Let him 
continue. 

THE   VICE-CHAIRMAN   (SHRI     MD. 
SALIM):   Yes,   continue,   Mr.   Ahluwalia. 
Continue and try to be brief. 
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SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY: Mrs. Margaret 
Alva has staged a walk-out as a protest 
against the language used by Mr. Ahluwalia. 
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should not be compounded by petty, partisan 
propaganda points. I am afraid, this has been 
done today on an unprecedented scale. Now 
the Home Minister made a statement while 
placing the Report on the Table of the House. I 
would like to know how serious this 
Government is about this Report. If it was 
serious, would it have taken ten months to 
place this eport on the Table of this House? It 
was submitted in June, 1992 and after ten 
months this was placed on the Table )f the 
House. Under the Commissions of Inquiry Act, 
the outer limit is six months. Mr. Minister of 
State fo.- Internal Security, the outer limit is 
six months. This shows that you were never 
bothered about this This belrays your casual, 
cavalier approach to the entire is-me. Now this 
is after the Commission Report was submitted. 
What did you do when the Commission was 
looking into the matter, Congress-!, AICC(I), 
was the last organisation to appear before this 
Commission. Nov. let me quote from the 
Commission-— I am sure Mr. Rajesh Pilot has 
not had the time to read this. On page 9 it says 
: 

"It is significant that in spite of a notice 
issued to the All India Congress Committee 
(I), it chose not to tile any statement of facts 
relevant for the purpose of this inquiry and a 
highly belated appearance on behalf of the 
AICC'(I) was made on November   16,  
1991." 

Only four months after the assassination of 
Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, did the AICC (D appear 
before the Commission even though the first 
hearing. . {interruption) .. Yes, I stand 
corrected. Even though the first hearing was 
on October 7, 1991 after issue of a public 

notice. 

"The Tamil Nadu Congress Committee (I) 
and the organisers of the public meeting at 
Sriperumbudur participated in the proceedings 
but their lack of coordination almost upto the 
end of the proceedings produced hardly 

 
SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY : Mr. Vice-Cha 

rman, I find it difficult to speak after the 
magniloquent speech of Mr. Ahluwalia. The 
ghastly assassination of Mr. Rajiv Gandhi was 
undoubtedly a tragedy of the first magnitude, 
but that sense of tragedy  which   has   historic      
proportions 
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Now, frequent references have been made 
to the SPG. I am not able to understand how 
this word 'withdrawal' is being often used. 
Undsr the SPG Act, the protection of thfc 
SPG was meant only for the office of Prime 
Minister. I was a Member of tlie liighth Lok 
Sabha. I can quote from the debates in which 
I participated when I said that such an act for 
;i single individual or single office is 
unprecedented an3 unparalleled in the de-
mocratic annals ;of the world; the office of 
the President of America is taken care of by 
a certain wing which is a part of a general 
agency. I can cite from my own speech 
which I delivered at that time. But I dont 
want to waste the time of tiie House. 

Let me now rcjfer to the indifference of the 
Congressmen! which the Commission 
commented upon. I draw the attention of the 
Minister to plage 79. I quave : 

"An attitude of intransigence of the Congress 
partymen and organisers, their concern bein 
only to encash Rajiv Gandhi's visitj to 
improve the election prospects remaining 
apathetic to his security needs.; 

Lack of co-ordination between the 
candidate M. | Chandrasekhar and the 
TNCC(I)." 

I would like do ask Mr. Ahluwalia and his 
friends whether Ms. Chandrasekhar and Mr. 
Ramamurthy would be hanged for this lack of 
co-ordination ? 

"Total lack of co-ordination between 
the   police   and   the   organisers      due   to 
absence   of   proper   liaison. Failures 
attributable to the organisers which contributed 
to ineffective access conrol were : erection of 
single barricades and that too inadequate in 
front of the rostrum and no barricades behind 
the rostrum; inadequate lighting behind the. 
rostrum  where gathering of people and 

any tangible benefit. The apathy of the 
AICC(I) and the dissension between the 
TNCC(I) and the organisers deprived the 
Commission of the assistance which t could 
legitimately expect from the Congress (1) 
Party in the task. It appears from the evidence 
that this factor also contributed to the lack of 
co-ordination between the organisers and 
consequently the i liaison with the police 
force in making the arrangements for the 
meeting at Sriperumbudur on May 21, 1991." 

'..It   was   reasonable      to   expect   that 
the Congress (I)  Party would astist the 
Commission   by   pointing   out   at   least 
the   deficiencies   in  the   security  system 
prescribed  for  Rajiv  Gandhi,  of which 
they would be aware, but this assistance 
also  it   failed  to  render.   The AICC'(l) 
even   after  its   belated  appearance   had 
nothing   can   did   to   say   or   suggest.    
It was indeed the fairness of the Attorney 
General   of   India   and  the       Advocate 
General   of   Tamil   Nadu   who   ensured 
production of the relevant   Government 
records   in  compliance   of  the  Commis-
sions's  directions, which brought befoie the   
Commission   evert   the     documents 
containing  the   protest      lodged   by  P. 
Chidambram   against   reduction   in    the 
level   of  protective        security  to   Rajiv 
Gandhi.   Surely,   this      fact   must  have 
been known to  the AICC(I)   and   they 
should have  realised  its  significance    in 
this inquiry. The ambience  of the Congress 
(I) Party and   the  manner        in which  it  
chose   to     participate   in   Ihe 
proceedings   of   the   Commission   is   in--
deed striking." 

There could not have been a more ringing 
indictment of the attitude of insouciance and 
indifference that the AIOC(I) adopted towards 
the task of the Commission. It should not, 
therefore, lie in the mouth of the Congress (1) 
Members to berate anybody about the neglect 
towards the security of Mr. Rajiv Gandhi. 
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their movement was uncontrolled; park 
ing of cars within the venue and also 
behind the rostrum; bringing in people 
described as partymea whose presence 
in the sterile area was not necessary; 
free movement of persons in and out 
of VIP I Press enclosures and between 
them from behind the rostrum; erection 
of   VIP|Press   enclosures   within the 

sterile area : performance of the music 
programme of Shankar Ganesh music party 
on the same dais from 7.30 p.m. till almost 
the arrival of Rajiv Gandhi; general 
disorder at the venue throughout; and 
choice of unsuitable venue for the public 
meeting by Mr. Chandra-sekhar in 
preference to the school ground available 
nearby with provision for a separate 
entrance for the VIP." 

These were all the findings of the Com 
mission against the AICC(T) and the 
TNCC(I). To cover up these gargantuan 
failures, you are levelling stupid, fantastic, 
allegations against leaders of national stature. 
Now, what did the Tamil Nadu police say 
about the Congressmen in Tamil Nadu ? Let 
me draw your attention to Page 27. In sum. the 
submission of the learned Advocate-General 
was that lapses and deficiencies, disclosed in 
evidence are attiibutable to the Central Gov-
ernment, namely, the Ministry of Home 
Affairs, the Intelligence Bureau, the organisers 
and the Congress partymen. The report 
records "Shri Vaidyanathan was critical of the 
role of the AICC for its delay in finalising and 
communicating the tour programme of Rajiv 
Gandhi giving very little time to the organisers 
and the police force to make the arrangements 
in spite of its awareness of the threat to Rajiv 
Gandhi requiring proper security arrange-
ments." He goes on to damn Mr. Rama-
murthy, Mrs. Chandrasekhar, Mr. Dass and all 
others. Why did not one Congress Member 
speak about this ? Now, let me refer to the 
position taker, by the former Attorney-
General, Mr. G. Ramaswamy, who cannot be 
accused of any sympathy towards the Janata   
Dal  or antipathy to- 

wards the Congress (I). I am I think, relying 
upon the standaM figure of speech in English 
called 'under statement' while I am referring to 
the former Attorney-General Mt. G. 
Ramaswamy. let me refer to the report "The 
learned Attorney-General contended that SPG 
cover could not be given to Rajiv Gandhi 
since the same was meant only for the Prime 
Minister (ill the amendment to the Special 
Protection Group Act in September, 1991. to 
cover also former Prims Ministers and their 
immediate family members". This Attorney-
General said that so long as the SPG Act was 
not amended, this was not possible. Therefore, 
the question of withdrawal does not arise. If 
Mr. Venkatra-man ceased to be President, his 
exit from Rashtrapathi Bhawan would be 
automatic. Nobody can say that he was thrown 
out of Rashtrapathi Bhawan. Then, I would 
like to make one point which has airedy been 
made by other friends and, that   is   this [. 

.Interruptions. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY • Sir, 
normally, such kind of words are not used 
when there is any reference to hon. President 
of India. This has been the convention of the 
House. Such words "throwing out the 
President" etc. are unwarranted. 

That does not mean that you can refer to 
him when he was not holding the office. 

SHRI S. JA1PAL P.EDDY : Sir, I am 
prepared to get mv expression amended by 
you. I am prepared to withdraw any 
expression that might offend the high cultural 
sense of Mr. Narayanasamy and friends   of  
his   like. 

The point I am trying to make is that laws 
come into automatic operation. If the SPG 
cover was extended to Mr. Rajiv Gandhi up to 
the first week of January, 1990, that extension 
was illegal. The question   of   withdrawal   
does      not   arise. 
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Anybody who has a minimal command over 
grammer would understand this. It does not 
need much o! common sense. I would like to 
say, if the Congi'css-I was dissatisfied with the 
security extended to Mr. Rajiv Gandhi by the 
Government of National Front, it 's 
understandable. Even Mr. Kamiapafi Tripathy 
made an issued of it sometime in Jasuary, 
1990. Mr. V.P. Singh continued to be the 
Prime .VHn;ster until the first week of 
November. Show me one statement made by 
any leader of the Congress between February, 
1990 and November, 1990. The absence of 
any protest during this protracted peiiod in-
dicates only one thing and nothing e'se. That is 
this : the Congress was satisfied with the 
security arrangement for Mr. Rajiv Gandhi. If 
it was not satisfied, what prevented the 
Congress-I from requesting the Government of 
Mr. Chandra Shekhar to amend the Act and 
extend the SPG cover to Mr. Rajiv Gandhi ? 
liven now. I have a very wide ranging political 
differences with Mr. Chandra Shekhar. As 1 
know him personally, T can state without any 
hesitation that he would have extended the 
SPG cover by amending the Act if only a 
request had been made in writing or orally. 
Did anybodv make that request'; Why did they 
not make such a request"; The only inference 
that is possible undei the circumstances is that 
you were completely satisfied w'th the security 
thai was then being made available to Mr 
Rajiv Gandhi. 

Let me refer to Mr. M. K. Narayanan, who 
was the Director of the IB when Mr. Rajiv 
Gandhi was the Prime Minister, who again 
became Director of the IB after Mr. Chandr.i 
Shekhar became the Prime Minister. I have 
enough evidence to believe that he was made 
the Director of IB at the instance of the 
Congress-I party. Mr. M.K. Narayanan was 
and has been one of our '.nost outstanding 
intelligence officers and he was also 
passionately loyal to Congress-I and Mr. Rajiv 
Gandhi and he was the Director of the IB  
when this ghastly incident   took 

jlace.    But   the   Commission   in   my   view 
encd   when  it   made  a  very    harsh  com-
ment on such an officer. i Mr.   M.K.   
Narayanan   was   given     the Padma   Shree''   
after   you   came   back  to wwer again. About 
Mr. M. K. Narayanan, A hat  does the Can 
mission     say   '.'  1  am drawing  your 
attention to a para  on page 25: 

"The Commission is left witii (he im-
pression that the Director of the Intelligence 
Bureau, Mr. M. K. Narayanan, was not 
satisfied with the security arrangements for 
Rajiv Gandhi and was apprehensive of the 
safety. But, for some undisclosed reason, he 
was ineffective and he has chosen to maintain 
silienee even now. If this impression of the 
Commission be correct, such disability in the 
lolder of the high office is disturbing, ljts 
cause needs to be discovered and eradicated 
for the health of the polity." : 

1 would like to ask whether they are ;oing 
to get Mr. M- K. Narayanan langed for this 
indictment. 

Now, my friend, Shri Ahluwa'ia, made i 

very good point against a number of itupid 
points. 

SHRI YASH\yANT SINHA : Is it 
parliamentary ? 

SHRI   S.   JAPAL   REDDY   :   I       am 
not saying he is stupid, but his points are 
stupid. After all it is not possible for anybody 
to indulge in sustained nonsense. Since he 
deviated into since, I am referring to one of 
these lucid intervals of Mr. Ahluwalia. He 
referred to a movie called the "Delta Force" 
which was produced in 1990, whose video 
cassettes were available in India arid, in that 
movie, the human bomb wbs the technique 
shown. Our Intelligence could not pick up this 
point. I have gene through all the circulars   
sent   by   the   Intelligence   Department 
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and the Home Ministry. In none of these 
circulars there is even a remote reference to the 
technique or the phenomenon of human bomb. 
And now, even after the assassination of Mr. 
Rajiv Gandhi, the Verma Commission says that 
we have not learnt any lessons. 

The Verma Commission got experimental 
studies mads of the security arrangements 
made lot the present Prime Minister, Mr. P.V. 
Narasimha Rao, the former Prime Minister, 
Mr. V. P. S ngh, after the SPG was extended to 
him, and to Shri L.K. Advani, and the 
experimental studies indicated seriou.; lapses 
in the security arrangement for all these three 
leaders. The Commission says that even after 
the assassnation of Mr. Rajiv Gandhi, we as a 
system, we as a Government, have failed 
dismally to learn any lessons whatsoever. 

The Commission also refers to anothei 
interest ng and disturbing incident. In Nov-
ember 1992, an incident took place when the 
State Police of Maharashtra did not allow the 
National Security Guards to play their part in 
the security that was to be providi d to the 
PM. it appears as though we are incapable of 
learning lessons like the French Bourbons 
who would learn noth'ng and forget nothing. 
But we have to leain forget political and 
administrative lessons from these tragedies. 

Our friends were objecting to the non-
extension of SPG cover to Mr. Rajiv Gandhi. 
I would like to put one question to Mr. 
Rajesh Pilot. Why was SPG cover not 
extended to Mrs. Sonia Gandhi until the Act 
was amended ? Repeated demands were 
made by Members from all sides that enough 
SPG protection must be given. We stood up 
in our seats and said that if necessary the SPG 
Act must be amended in the light of the shat-
tering experience that we had. And the 
Government took so many months to amend 
the Act. And during that period, you  could  
not  extend  the SPG cover  to 

Mrs.   Sonia    Gandhi,   you   could  not  ex-
tend SPG  cover  to Mr. Chandra Shekhar 
orMr.   V.   P.   Singh.   And   when       you 
brought    forward   the   Amendment,     that 
amendment   was     meant   only   for    Mrs. 
Sonia  Gandhi.  I  do   not   grudge   it.   She 
needs   it,   she   deserves   it.   But   then  
you grudgingly added two other  former 
Prime Ministers   to   the   list.    You   
please       go through   the   proceedings   of  
the  Bill.   So, would   Mr.   P.V.   
Narasimha       Rao     be handed   for   not   
having   extended       SPG cover to Mrs.  
Sonia Gandhi between    the day  of  his  
swearing   r.   and  that  amendment  to  the  
SPG Ac!   ? Who will      be hanged  for this  
failuse   ?  Fortunately,  no tragedy  took  
place. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
MD. SALIM) : Mr. Jaipal Reddy, will 
you please yield for a minute ? You wish 
to  continue  ?   If  the   House  agrees, I 
request Mr. Ram Naresh Yadav to occupy the 
Chair. 

THE VICB-CHAIRMAN (Shri Ram 
Naresh Yadav) : In the Chair. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY : I am deli-
jerately using the word hanging' because 
hanging is the onlv punishment for all the 
judgmental errors, managerial lapses, and 
administrative failures. 

Now, let me refer to Mr. Vinod Pande. 1 am 
not able to understand one thing. I have got 
great respect for Justice Verma. He did an 
excellent job. I do not know why Justice 
Verma did not deem it fit to call Mr. V.C. 
Pande. He could have been called as a witness. 
In my view, it was a lapse on the pact of the 
Commission. I am not accus'ngthe 
Commission of mala-fides. No. Everybody 
commits judgmental errors. It could he one 
such error. 

ITien I would like to draw your attention to 
the fact that you had a Congressman as Tamil 
Nadu Governor. What was he doing ? And it 
was you who chose 'hat   Governor.   And   he  
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the Governor. And this tragedy look place 
when lie was the Governor. Where is the 
question of hanging, he has not even resigned. 
Will you at least ask him to resign as the first 
follow-up step ? 

Now I would like to say something about 
our VVIPs. This Commission Report itself 
refers fo one circular issued by the 
Intelligence Department, according to which 
Mr. Rajiv Gandhi was not conforming to 
securty discipline. I know from the way Mr. 
V.P. Singh functions that he also does not 
conform to security discipline. Our VVIPs 
should not merely demand security 
arrangement but Ihey must also take care to 
conform to the stringent parameters   of 
security discipline. 

If, n the course of the elections, oui leaders 
get excited and reach out to the people, this 
SPG cannot save the leaders. We know what 
happened in Sri Lanka recently. The President 
of Sri Lanka was killed, and one week before 
that, Athulath-mudali, his main rival, was 
killed. The whole island has been rendered 
leader-less. So, don't think that these things 
cannot happen again. Therefore, we will have 
to sensitive our own WIPs to the requirements 
of the new security environment. 

And now coming to the question of 
sensitisation, I would like to say that sensit 
saticn is far more important than sterilisation. 
Through expressions like access control, 
proximate control, you are only talking of 
sterilisation. You are not mindful of the role 
played by the element of sensitisation. The 
leaders of our respective partes at various 
echelons should be sensitised to security 
requirements of our VVIPs. In all our 
parties—1 do not exclude the BJP which 
claims to be a cadre-based party—our workers 
and leaders at lower levels get swayed by 
enthusiasm and ignore security considerat;ons 
of their leader. Therefore, we, in our 
respective parties, should be able to educate   
ourf   cadre*.   The   tragedy   of     Mr. 

1098 RS/94—25. 

Rajiv  Gandhi's   assassination     shows  that the  
Congress-I    leaders  were  not  sensitive 
enough   in  this   rejspect.   I   do   not   blame 
Mrs.    Maragatham^ Chandrasekhar   or   Mr. 
Ramamurthy for this reason. Their errors, f   
any,   were    absplately   bonafide.     They 
were committed ir| good   faith.   Therefore, 
what are the lessors we as a polity should draw 
from  this   tiiagedy  ?  If  we use  this occassion   
to   score   partisan   points,   I   am afraid,   we  
are only compounding the  tragedy and we are  
(saving the way for new tragedies.  I  earnestly 
request       everybody !o  rise above partisan 
lines.    I would request   some   Members   of   
the   C'ongress-I to   rise   above   fafctional   
lines   also.   This debate  appears   to  be  
motivated more  by factional considerations 
than by party considerations.   Our   jj>arty   
can   take   care   of itself.    Our leadeif,  Mr.  
V.  P.   Singh can take   care  of  himbelf.   It   is  
not   we   who asked the   Chief  Election   
Commissioner postpone   elections   in   Palani  
or  in   Otta-palam. It is not wje who are going 
to lose the deposit in Pafria by electon. 
Therefore friends, take care lof your house. You 
are sitting on a   volcano.  But the tragedy   is, 
you are not awarje of ths fact  that    the whole 
country is setting on a volcano. You must  take   
collectjve   steps  to  defuse   the tension.  
Somewhere   in       the  report,  Mr. Verma,   in   
an   admirable   way,   refers   to the   
atmosphere    that   can   be   evocatively 
created   by   the   moral   authority   of   per-
sons  like   Mahatma  Gandhi  and  Jayapra-
kash   Narayanan.     Do   we       have     such 
people  ?  Shall we not make a conscious, 
collective and concerted effort to see that an  
atmosphere of  dialogue is created and that   
atmosphere   of   confrontation   is     at least 
defused ? In an atmosphere of con-frcMitation, 
we have  seen  in the last few years,   no   issues  
can  be   discussed.       So, my   appeal    s   that   
this   tragedy  will   not have   gone   in  vaih  if  
we  draw  right  lessons  for  our  polity  and our  
society. 

 

We cannot affof-d this kind of approach 
when our society jis stinking and when our 
polity is sinking. Thank you. 
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SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : Mr. Vice-
chairman, Sir, thank you for giving me this 
opportunity. 

Sir, 1 was hearing with rapt attention 
to the speech of Shri Jaipal Reddy who 
tried to turn the table on the Congress 
(I)  side,  blaming the Congressmen of 
Tamil Nadu for all the lapses. 

Here, I would like to give a little back-
ground to the whole thing. All of us know 
fully well about the situation that was 
prevailing ^n Sri Lanka how the Tamil Ealam 
issue was being raised by the militant groups 
there, how they took asylum in Tamil Nadu, 
and which were the political parties in Tamil 
Nadu that were giving them all protections 
when they were in power. We know also how, 
using Tamii Nadu as their base, they were 
wagina a war in Sri Lanka against the Sri 
Lankar Government. Then, as you know, the 
Indian Government and our beloved lea der, 
Prime Minister, Shri Rajiv Gandhi had to 
inteivene for the purpose of bring ing about an 
amicable settlement in Sr Lanka. 

No doubt, the agreement was signed, the 
fndo-Sri Lankan Agreement, for the purpose 
of bringing about a settlement to the ethnic 
issue. It was also agreed to by the LTTE. 
Thereafter, they retract-, ed from their 
position. They took upon themselves that it 
was Shri P.sjiv Gandhi, our leader and hon. 
Prime Minister, was responsible for the 
sending of the IPKP They created law and 
order problems in the Tamil-dominated areas 
of Sri !Lanka for which Shri Rajiv Gandhi 
was responsible, according to them. Therefore, 
they decided to take revenge upon Shri Rajj\ 
Gandhi. They selected the right time the right 
moment and the right place foi the 
assassination of our leader. According to 
news-paper reports and also the findings of the 
investigation, they tried ir several places, but 
they could not succeed Ultimately,   they   
selected   Sriperumbudur 

On that tragic day, i.e. 21st May, 1991, 
when Shri Rajiv Gandhi arrived at the neeting 
venue, a lot of people, Congressmen, who 
came there to attend the meeting, out of 
enthusiasm and curiosity to see their leader, 
surged forward in the crowd. Then the lady, 
the human bomb, who claimed to be an 
innocent woman, operated the switch which 
she was holding in her hand and our leader 
was brutally killed. The Verma Commission 
went into this in detail. After examining all the 
witnesses in this cine, it fixed responsibility 
on the Central Government, the State 
Government, and also on the Tamil Nadu 
Congress (I) Committee. The Commission 
made some recommendations to the 
Government. 

Now, Sir, one has to see the root-cause. Why 
did this assassination take place ? Who were 
responsible for it ? Why did the LTTE take the 
decision to assassinate Shri Rajiv Gandhi at 
Sriperumbudur ? Hon. Members from our side 
,have elaborately discussed about it and cited 
the reasons behind it. Particularly, I would like 
to mention here that if Mr. V. P. Singh, the 
then Prime Minister, had not taken the decision 
on 30th January, 1990, to withdraw the SPG 
cover to Shri Rajiv Gandhi, the brutal 
assassination of our leader would not have 
taken place. No amount of arguments put 
forward by Shri Jaipal Reddy is going to con-
vince us. He was saying : 'Why did you (tot 
ask Mr. Chandra Shekhar to amend the Act ? 
Why did you not ask for security cover to 
Shrimati Sonia Gandhi, the former Prime 
Minister's wife, and other family members  ?' 

All these arguments cannot hold good for 
the simple reason that the decision to extend 
the SPG over to Shri Rajiv Gandhi and his 
family was taken considering the immediate 
threat perception that was here for Shri Raj v 
Gandhi and his  family. 
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Sir, Shri Jaipal Reddy wanted to compare 

Rajiv Gandhi with other leaders, I also respect 
other leaders, but according to the Verma 
Commission recommendation, if you go 
through it, it is very clear, quite categorical 
that next to the President of India and the 
Prime Minister, Rajiv Gandhi came in the 
third category— Z plus. One should not forget 
chat. You simply cannot ignore the fact that 
Rajiv Gandhi was mainly responsible for 
keeping the country together and he faced 
several challenges after the death of Shrimati 
Indira Gandhi, the former Prime Minister. 
There were problems in Assam, Jamnui and 
Kashmir, Punjab, North Eastern States and 
also in some parts of Tamil Nadu. As Prime 
Minister of this country, as a statesman, as a 
true nationalist and a great leader, he faced 
those challenges and tried to solve those 
problems. Naturally, when any national leader 
is trying to solve certain problems, there 
would be some people affected by that. They 
will definitely have a grudge against that 
leadership. This is quite natural in any 
country. Therefore, looking to the immediate 
threat perception that was there for Rajiv 
Gandhi, for heaven's sake, do not compare him 
with other leaders. One has to accept realities. 

Sir, there are umpteen number of IB reports 
to the effect that SPG cover was the only 
protection for Rajiv Gandhi because not only 
he was the Leader of the Opposition, not only 
he was the leader of the Congress Party, but 
the immediate threat perception to him was 
more than to anybody else in this country. It is 
not a question of technicalities, it is a question 
of the life of the national leader, who spent his 
life-time for the unity and integrity of this 
country. 

But, Sir, strange arguments are coming 
forth from the other side. It is said. "Why did 
you not make an amendment?'* I would like 
to tell the hon. senior Member,  Shri   Jaipal   
Reddy,   that   when  Shri 

V. P. Singh was rrJling this country, we 
made a specific iequjest in this House and 
0 was the one whd made a claim along 
tvith other hon. colleagues on this side 
:hat the SPG Act should be amended to 
provide protection t|o Shri Rajiv Gandhi 
who     had       an     | immediate threat 
perception.     Shri   Jaipal     Reddy was 
not a Member of this House at that time, ft is 
on record. We made a categorical iernand. But 
I am pained to say in this august House that 
even after the death of our great leader, Shri 
Rajiv Gandhi, !hey have not learnt the lesson. 
At that time when we raised the issue, they 
poohpoohed us. They have been telling that 
these people were making a mockery and not 
rasing the! real issue. They said that we were 
trying] to project our leader by making such a 
Remand. This was the approach of the ruling 
party at that time. Here 1 would like to refer to 
one press interview which was given by Shri 
Jaipal Reddy at that time. He was the party 
spokesman. He said in the press interview, 
'The Government is willing to spend money 
for the security of Rajiv Gandhi." And 
referring to the demand of Congress (I) for 
deployment of Special Protection Group for 
Shri Rajiv Gandhi, Mr. Reddy said, "Let them 
tell us what is their idea of security threat to 
Rajiv Gandhi." 

S r. this was their appioach when they were 
in power. They thought that Congressmen in 
this House and also in the other House were 
trying to project Rajiv Gandhi as if he had a 
security threat that it was not real land that 
thereby they wanted to gain politically out of 
it. When we found that there: were 
perceptions of immediate threat ty Rajiv 
Gandhi, we raised the issue in the House, but 
it was sidelined and ignored by the other side. 
Therefore. Sir, that was the root-cause, that 
was the main cause. 

SHRI     S.     JAIPAl.   REDDY   :     Mr. 
Narayanasamy, will you yield ? 
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Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, he referred to 
some statement of mine. I am afraid it. has 
been either misreported or quoted out of 
context. Unless I see the whole statement, it 
will not be fair for me to react. 1 reserve my 
right to react. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : The Press 
report is dated 15th February, 1990. ft is in the 
"INDIAN EXPRESS". Shri Jaipal Reddy was 
the spokesman of the ruling party at that time. 

SHRI SUBRAMANIAN       SWAMY 
(Uttar Pradesh) : Read ft. 

SHRI V. NARANASAMY : I have read. it 
already. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY : Read the whole 
thing. 

SHRI      SUBRAMANIAN      SWAMY 
Now  you   are   embarrassed     by   all  your 
utterances   of   the   past. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY : I am never 
embarrassed. 

SHRI SUBRAMANIAN SWAMY. You 
are not. Now you are not able to own it up. 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH : I know you 
are never embarrassed like water over the 
duck's back. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : The 
hon. Member also quoted several letters 
written by the I.B. to the State Adminis 
tration. I do not want to go into those 
details because they are forming part of 
the record in the Verma Commission 
Report. .. 

One thing I would like to submit about the 
situation under which we were forced to go in 
for elections in 1991. We know pretty well 
that Congress Party which gave    support   to   
Shri   Chandra   Shekhar, 

the then Prime Minister, withdrew the support, 
and, thereafter, we were forced to go in for 
elections. Everybody knew pretty well that 
Shri Rajiv Gandhi was touring various States 
for the purpose of electioneering. The I.B. was 
giving reports. The Home Ministry from time 
to time, periodically, was sending reports to 
the State Governments wherever leaders were 
going for electioneering. When- Rajiv Gandhi 
was going for electioneering, records are there 
to the effect that the IB which is there in the 
States and also at the Centre and the Home 
Ministry were sending reports to the State 
Governments for the purpose of taking action. 

Sir. a question has been asked, why, when 
Mr. Chandra Shekhar was the Prime Minister, 
Congress Party did not amend the SPG Act. I 
would like to submit to this august House that 
when Shri Chandra Shekhar was the Prime 
Minister, the same demand was made by us in 
this House and also in the other House but for 
obvious reasons, for reasons best known to 
them, the Act was not amended. Not only that, 
Sir, as Prime Minister of the country, whether 
he was a caretaker Prime Minister or a Prime 
Minister who was not enjoying majority or a 
Prime Minister who was allowed by the Presi-
dent of India to continue in power, Shri 
Chandra Shekhar had knowledge, perception 
of immediate threat to Rajiv Gandhi when he 
was touring for electioneering. The 
Government at the time when our leader. Rajiv 
Gandhi was assassinated cannot also be 
absolved of the responsibility because when 
Rajiv Gandhi was going for electioneering to 
various States, the Prime Minister at that time 
had the knowledge, perception of immediate 
threat to him and of the danger to his life. 
When they knew that Rajiv Gandhi was not 
given adequate protection, it was their duty, 
being in power at the time of the elections, to 
give protection to Rajiv Gandhi. Which 
personalities and which political leaders who 
were in power 
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at   that  time,  took  the responsibility and 
resigned at that time ? 

Nobody   resigned.   The   persons       who 
were   in  power  and  were  responsible  die 
not  give  any  direction  to   the  SPG  and 
none of them resigned. The police officers 
have been suspended.  The State Adminis-
tration   says   against   any   individual       nc 
specific   information   has been   given  by the  
Verma  Commission.  Therefore,       the hon.  
Minister says he cannot take  action against   
individuals.   The    Home   Ministry as   a   
whole   had   been   monitoring      the security 
aspect of the leader. They   know pretty well 
who have  been  looking  after the   same   
department,   the  same   section The persons 
who have been sending messages, knew who 
have been monitoring it. They  are  
responsible.  You have  to  infer and   find    
out.   The   Verma     Commission cannot   
identify   a   single   individual    because it   is   
ah   organisation   which       is responsible for  
it. As far as the State Administration of Tamil  
Nadu  is  concerned, it  was   a   total   failure  
of  the  police   administration.   The   police   
authorities   who were  on  duty   there  right     
from      Mr. Raghavan and also Mr. 
Rangaswamy and other police officers allowed 
that melee to continue    there   when   Rajiv   
Gandhi   entered the  dais.  They did not  
regulate the people.   I   quite   agree   with   
Shri     Jaipal Reddy, when the leader arrives 
one should have   the  sensitivity  and  one   has  
to  protect  the leader.  I  agree.  But it is  a psy-
chological  fact   that   when 'the       leadet 
comes  everyone  becomes   emotional.  It  is a  
real  fact   of  life.   Everybody  knows  it 
Therefore, blaming the Congressmen then is   
not correct.  But if there is any lapse about  the  
arrangement,   about   the   barricade, about the 
place chosen etc. then it can be   pointed out.  
But as far as      the people   gathering   there    
and   the     people wanting to see the leader out      
of  their curiosity is  concerned, it is for the 
police to regulate. The police was in a total 
mess. Nobody was there to give  protection, 
nobody  was  there   to   regulate   the    people, 

when Shri Rajiv! Gandhi, our leader, arrived 
there. So, I ;would squarely blame the police 
administration there. I would submit that the 
police officers, who had been suspended! 
immediately thereafter have been reinstated 
by the State Government. 

SHRI TINDIVANAM" G. VENKAT-
RAMAN (Tam|ilnadu) : The latest in-
formation is that they are going to be 
promoted. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI RAM 
NARESH YADAV) : Don't comment, please. 

SHRI SUBRAMANIAN SWAMY : Sir, it 
is a very sejrious matter. The Home Misistry 
should replace the State Government. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: Sir, it is a 
sorry state | of affairs. The police offi-:ers who 
were responsible for monitoring the security 
system and for giving protection to Shri Rajiv 
Gandhi, our leader, though they had been 
suspended, have now been reinstated by the 
State Government. When the Verma 
Commission has specifically indicated the 
police administration and also the State 
Government, why have the police officers 
been reinstated by the State Government ? Not 
only that, who has  resigned from the State 
Government ? When our leader, Rajiv Gandhi 
was assassinated, Mr. Chandra Shekhar was 
the Prime Minister. I asked a question. Who 
owned the moral responsibility and resigned ? 

I apply the Same yardstick to the State 
administration also. Who held himself 
responsible ? 

SHRT DIGVIJAY SINGH : Whom do you 
want to fix ? 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : It is for the 
Minister to! take action. 
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SHRI DIGVIJAY SINGH : You should 
also fix. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : No. I am 
not here as a Minister to fix the responsibility. 
It is for the hon. Home Misister to take action 
against the State administration, who were 
responsible at that time. Mr. Digvijay Singh 
has to accept that during President's Rule the 
responsibility of the Centre is more. The State 
administration is guided by them. Therefore, 
the primary responsibility falls on them. This- 
responsibility equally falls on the State 
administration to whom they delegated their 
power. 

SHRI DIGVIJAY SINGH : But, will it be 
followed for everybody ? 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY . I will 
answer that point also. Kamal Morarka raised 
that point. I am going to answer that also. I 
have got answer for that. As far as the action 
taken report is concerned, I would like to 
quote only one line, which I would like to 
submit to the Hon. Minister how the 
Government is accepting the report. That is 
very peculiar. 

In the Action Taken Report at page 10, para 
4, it has been said, "The Government finds it 
difficult to share the perception of the 
Commission and the lapses attributed to the 
Central Government and the IB." This is a 
very serious matter. The Verma Commission 
had specifically indicted the Central Govern-
ment and the TB. What the Verma Com-
mission has said, my friend, Mr. Jaipal Reddy 
had quoted. There was a findins that the IB 
officials have failed in their duty to monitor 
and give the correct information. 

Mr. Jaipal Reddy had quoted from page 25 
of the Verma Commission's report. 1 would 
like to quote from page 75, para 14.24 of the 
report : 

"The Commission is left with the im-
pression that the DIB M.K. Narayanan was 
not satisfied with the security arrangements 
for Rajiv Gandhi and was apprehensive about 
his safety but for some undisclosed reason he 
was ineffective and has chosen to maintain 
silence even now." 

wny was he incrrectve what was me eason ? 
Now you say that the IB was lot responsible. 
When the Verma Commission specifically 
indicted IB and even he Central Government, 
it is a clear case where the Central 
Government has to act. Even now the 
responsibility is more on he Central 
Government to act against he officials of the 
Central Government and against the persons 
who were responsible in the State 
administration. If the Central Government 
finds that even the persons in the TNCC were 
responsible, you fix the responsibility on 
them. I am not going to defend anybody in 
this case for the simple reason that our great 
leader who was the future of this country-was 
assassinated. 

In the name of technicalities in the SPG 
Act. SPG protection to the then Prime 
Minister was withdrawn. The V.P. Singh 
Government was trying to escape. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY : You catch. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : We are 
trying to catch you. Don't worry. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI RAM 
NARESH YADAV) : How much time will 
you take ? 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : I will take 
five minutes. I know that you have become 
dead wood. I can't catch you. [ know that also. 

As far as the Central Government is 
concerned, the Home Ministry officials and 
the persons who are responsible in the IB have 
to take action. The Central Government 
cannot  escape from its responsibility 
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saying that we will not agree with the Verma 
Commission recommends'ions as given on 
page 10 of your Action Taken Report. It 
totally goes against the findings of the Verma 
Commission's recommen-diations. Therefore, 
the Government has to give a reason as to why 
they are not accepting it. Without giving any 
reason, they can't say that they are not 
accepting the recommendations of the Verma 
Commission   on  th s  score. 

Not only that, Mr. Jaipal Reddy had 
mentioned about the Congress party. He had 
quoted from page 79, para 15.07 of the report. 
He had mentioned about 8 to 9 items, for 
example, lack of coordination, barricading 
was not proper, etc. Then he mentioned about 
inadequate lighting, parking of cars and so 
many other things. The arrangements for the 
election meeting done by the people who were 
in the party. Who has to monitor them? It is 
the security people who have to do it. Why 
have the police officials not discharged their 
responsibility directing them not to do that' 
Why have they not done it ? The police 
officials cannot absolve themselves from the 
responsibility by simply saying thai the 
Congress party did not agree to what ever 
they have said. That is not going to be the 
reason. How can the police officials escape by 
simply saying that the Congressmen did not 
agree with whatever they have suggested ? 
"Therefore, we have allowed the meeting to 
be held " 

Sir, the place where it was originally to be 
held was a school ground which was a 
protected area and which had got a compound 
wall. The venue was shifted from there to the 
place where our leader was assassinated. 
According to the Verma Commission, there 
was insistence, by the candidates of 
Maragatham Chandrasekar Candidates might 
say they wanted to hold the meeting at a 
particular police. But. what were the police 
doing ? 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY : What can the 
police do ? What can the poor police do ? 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : Mr. 
Jaipal Reddy, you know pretty well about 
he security. I need not teach you anything 
m that. In our place, the next day morn 
ing ......(Interruption).  The  next     day,   on 
the 22nd morning, about 8 O'clock, a meeting 
had to be held. I was monitoring that in our 
place. If Rajiv Gandhi had survived in thai 
place, they had planned to kill him in 
Pondicherry. I would have been one of the 
victims. I would have been happy to die with 
my leader. Had 1 died with my leader, my 
soul would have gone to the heaven. 
(Interruption). It is a sentimental subject. 
Kindly do not interrupt Mathurji. I did not 
interrupt when Mr. Jaipal Reddy spoke.  
(Interruption). 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY: Mr Vice-
Chairman. Sir, I would like to make only one 
comment. Congress friends were seeking a 
discussioii on the subject on strong 
sentimental grounds. 

I am deeply appreciative of their genuine 
sentiment. But, is that sentiment te-flecled in 
the presence of their Members ? 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI RAM 
NARESH  YADAV)   :  Let him  conclude. 

SHRI S. JAIIJAL REDDY : The Opposi-
tion is more in number. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : I was 
monitoring that meeting. We had selected one 
particular place near the sea-shore in our 
place. But the police did not agree. The police 
said that! that place was not suitable for 
holding an election meeting for security 
reasons! We agreed to the place which was 
located and given by the police. The police 
has !to identify and select the place and allot 
jit to the meeting. Even if the party does not 
agree, they will cancel the meeting and say, 
"We will not give permission to Wold the 
meeting". Th3 police failed in their duty. But, 
on the contrary, they are trying to blame the 
Congressmen of the State. The Verma 
Commission has also said that the  police did 
not 
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monitor. You have to accept that also. 
(Interruption). Mr. Digvijay Singh, we wanted 
a discussion earlier. Let us not argue on that. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI RAM 
NARESH YADAV) : Please conclude, Mr. 
Narayanasamy. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : In this 
Session.......... (Interruption). 

 

 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI RAM 
NARIJSH YADAV) : Yes, Mr. Narayana-
samy.  Please conclude now. 

SHIRI V. NARAYANASAMY : I am con-
cluding in two or three minutes. In this 
Session, I raised a question. It was Starred 
Question No. 227. It was listed on 12th May 
1993. 

The question was "whether the Verma 
Commission has stated in its report the*, the 
withdrawal of the SPG cover has led to the 
assassination of late Shri Rajiv Gandhi; if so, 
the steps taken by the Government to fix 
responsibility and bring to book the officials 
responsible; whether criminal action has been 
taken against those found responsible for this 
lapse; if not, the reasons thereof ?" I was 
shocked to receive the  reply.   They  have  
given  reply 
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in para no.  2.   "The Commission has not 
named  any  individual  officer' or  the  Central 
Government  as  being responsible   for the  
above-stated  contributory lapse."   The 
individual  officers should be identified and 
responsiblity fixed. I am very particular on this 
aspect. Though I stated it very briefly earlier,  is 
the Home Ministry, who is responsible for 
monitoring the security system of the VVlPs? If 
the IB is responsible for passing on information 
to the States where the VVIPs are going, can't 
you identify the individuals   who   are   
responsible   ?   Can't you  identify the persons 
who are responsible in the State administration 
? Can't you identify  the   persons   who   are   
responsible in the State police ? Is  it  an     
acceptable reply  ? Therefore, my  humble 
submission is  that  the  Government    has  to  
fix    the individual    responsibility   
irrespective        of any kind  of  political   
consideration.    This is a national issue.      The 
great leader was assassinated. Since  the Verma 
Commission has named the Central 
Government, it is the responsibility of the 
Home Ministry to name the officials  and take  
action.     Also you will have to take action 
against those officers in the State 
administration who are responsible   for this 
lapse. You     have    to identify the  police   
personnel  in  the  State administration who are 
responsible for the lapse and take   action  
against them.     You have  to ask  the State 
Government as to why  the  suspension  orders  
against     those police officers have  been 
withdrawn    who were found guilty. Now, the  
case is going on in the court. As regards the 
involvement of  a  foreign   agency  in  the   
assassination of late Shri Rajiv Gandhi, the Jain 
Commission  is  looking into that   aspect.  That 
is also going on. It is pertinent to mention here 
that   the Government cannot absolve itself of 
its liability. It has to  take stern action. The 
Government  should  see   to it that the persons 
who are responsible    for this lapse or who 
failed in their duty, have to be brought to book  
and action  has to be taken against  them. I want 
a categorical  reply from   the  hon.   Minister  
in  this regard. 1098 RSS/94—26. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED 
SIBJEY RAZl): In! the  Chair. Sir, i have gone  
through  the   recommendations   given by the  
Verma Commission  and the  reply given by 
the  hon.      Minister.   I  am    not satisfied 
with the action taken by the Government on 
the    recommendations    of the Verma 
commission;.  What  are the  recommendations  
of   the;   Verma      Commission about  the 
failure   of  the  security   system, the  failure  
of thee police     administration, the failure of 
the IB and  the failure      of the Home 
Ministry! ? All these things have been 
mentioned by: the Verma Commission in its 
recommendations. What has the Home 
Ministry done  ?  what   is    there     in   the 
"action taken" report ? In the "action taken" 
report,  it has been  stated by the Government:   
"We have forwarded it to the State 
Government stating therein that the police 
system should be strengthened, the security 
system   should   be i   strengthened,."       The 
Government has forwarded    the     "action 
taken" report to the various Ministries and to   
the  State   Government.    This   is       the 
"action   taken"  rep art.     I  would  like    to 
know  from the  hon.  Minister   whether he is 
satisfied with the "action taken" report. Let   
me   tell   him  i categorically       in   this 
House,   whether   it|  is   a   political   person-
ality or the officials, you   fix the responsibility   
and   you   take  action   against  them. 
Otherwise,  the Verma  Commission   report 
will go to the dustbin and we will not be doing 
any  service   to our leader, who was 
assassinated   and   if   the   recommendations 
of the Verma Commission are ignored by this   
Government,    hen   I  feel   we   would be   
doing   a   great   injustice   to   our   great 
leader.   Shri   Rajiv   Gandhi.   I    think   the 
hon.   Minister   will   see  to  it  that  all   the 
recommendations of the Verma Commission 
are considered carefully and action    taken 
accordingly. With these words, I conclude. 
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SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : Mr. Dig- 
.ijay Singh, if you yield.........  

SHRI DIGVIJAY SINGH : I am not 
yielding.   Let     the   Government reply, 

(interruptions). 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : If you want 
a reply, I will give you the reply, You have 
been raising it time and again in this House. 
Sir, Shrimati Indira Gandhi, our great leader 
was assassinated by her own security guards. 
Shri Rajiv-Gandhi was assassinated by an 
international organisation which had planned 
meticulously for several years to settle in 
Tamil Nadu. Let them not compare the 
assassination of Shri Rajiv Gandhi with the 
assassination of, the Shrimati Indira Gandhi. 
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SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH : Sir, this is a 
very important matter. I will request my 
friend, Shri Digvijay Singh, to kindly restrain 
himself. Let me set the record straight. Let me 
inform the House that punitive action was 
taken against each one of those who were in 
charge of the security of Mrs. Indira Gandhi. 

SHRI DIGVIJAY SINGH : What about The 
Home Minister ? 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH: It is not the   
Home   Minister's   direct  responsibility. 

SHRI DIGVIJAY SINGH: You want the  
then  Prime  Minister to  be  hanged. 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH : I will tell you. 
At the moment I want to inform you that 
punitive action was taken against all the erring 
police officers including one who happened to 
be a relative of the Prime Minister whose 
mother is sitting, here. She can bear witness to 
it. Action was taken even against that officer. 

 

"Neither the organisers nor the police 
aff.cers speak about her to indicate having 
either known or seen her earlier." 

 

.......... (interruptions). 

SHRT T.A.     MOHAMMED       SAQHY 
(Tamil Nadu)   :  She is now a Congress MLA. 

SHRI DIGVIJAY SINGH : It says : 

"Lata Priyakumar, daughter of M. 
Chandrasekhar has denied the suggestion 
that she was responsible for the permission 
granted to Kokila since her mother Latha 
Kannan was a Congress worker from 
Arakkonam in Lata Priyakumar's 
constituency. This fact bv itself may not be 
of much significance but lata Priyakumar 
does not appear to  be  a credible  witness." 

 

THE   VICE-CHAIRMAN    (SYED   SIB-
TEY RAZI)  : I am not permitting. Please. 

 

She is a daughter of M. Chandrasekhar. 
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SHRI RAJESH PILOT : Mr. Vice-
Chairman, Sir, may I take your permission to 
leave this House because I have to make a 
Statement on Kashmir in Lok Sabha ? I will 
be back within ten minutes. My colleague, Mr. 
Santosh Mohan Dev will note down the 
points. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN CSYED SIB-IEY 
RAZI) : All right. 

 

Sir, I would confine myself to the Report 
because that is our purpose, to discuss the 
Report, and I think it is time that we read the 
Report in its full form. We are just merely 
speculating on the Report and the Members 
are quoting paragraphs   or   portions   of      
paragraphs 
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rather than the paragraphs themselves. If the 
paiagraphs are read in their entirely, they tell 
a totally different story. 

I would first like to draw your attention to 
Chapter VI, para 16.02(9) on page 81 and I 
would like the House to pay attention to this, 
'and this is in reply to what Shri Digvijay 
Singh ji has said, that is, that the Commission 
has, in fact, held that it was just a contributing 
factor.    In fact, the Commission did not say 
that. 

"In view of the continuing high threat to 
Rajiv Gandhi even on his ceasing to be the 
Prime Minister and, consequently tne decision 
of the Central Government taken on 4-12-89 
to continue the SPG cover to him for 
proximate security as ex-Prime Minister 
subject to modification in the level of 
protection on fresh assessment of threat, the 
decision of the Central Government on 30-1-
90 to withdraw the SPG cover to Rajiv 
Gandhi without provision for a suitable alter-
native for his proximate security which was 
not as a result of fresh assessment of threat 
justifying reduction of his security, and the 
consequent withdrawal of the SPG cover 
reducing the level of protection to Rajiv 
Gandhi without any reduction of the threat to 
him was contrary to Central Government's 
owr earlier decision as well as his security 
requirement and was unjustified." 

This   is  what  the   Report  says   in   para 
16.02(9). 

Then   again   it   says   in   para   10      like 
this : 

"The stated reasons in the Cabinet 
Secretariat's note dated 30-l-9O! for 
the Centra! Government's decision to 
withdraw the SPG cover to the ex 
Prime Minister are tenuous ......... " 

Please mark the word "tenuous", Sir. 

"The reasons given were mainly lack of 
power under the SPG Act and inadequacy of 
the strength of SPG, apart from a high 
profile visibility inviting criticism. None of 
these reasons was considered as an 
insurmountable hurdle to give SPG cover 
for providing proximate security to the 
former Prime Ministers also from 
September 1991 after the assassination of 
Rajiv Gandhi. There appears to be no reason 
why this could not be done earlier for Rajiv 
Gandhi as ex-Prime Minister when the 
assessment of threat to him was much 
higher and, therefore, the need was greater. 
It appears that the Central Government's 
decision on 30-1-90 was promoted more by 
lack of proper perception or the requisite 
will then the slated difficulties." 

So, it is quite clear. I do not shirk the 
responsibility as a Congressman that one of 
the contributing factors was the greed of the 
Congressmen who had Rajiv Gandhi to visit 
their constituency and collect the maximum 
number of people io garner votes. After all, 
that was the purpose when a leader visited a 
constituency. In any case, I am sure you would 
also do the same thing if your leaders are vote-
catchers and everybody does that. That is a 
part of the whole political process. So, I do not 
shirk that respon-bility. I also do not shirk the 
responsibility saying that it was not the 
responsibility of the Tamil Nadu police, that it 
was not the responsibility also of the Intelli-
gence Bureau. While saying all this, I would 
like to revert to para 16.02(9) again. 

It refers to the meeting of the Cabinet 
Secretary on 4-12-1989. This is not Mr. Vinod 
Pande. It was the previous Cabinet Secretary. 
And he says, "the JDIB has stated that the 
threat perception in respect of ex-Prime 
Minister has changed since he is no longer the 
Head of Government. He  now faces danger 
arising out 
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of   personal   vendetta."   Whose     personal 
vendetta? 1 will come to that a little later. The  
secority  arrangements  we provide  to him  now 
will have to take this fact into account.  IB will 
be sending a fresh threat assessment tor the ex-
Pnme Minister very soon.   The instruction of 
the Government is   that the  ex-Prime  Minister  
should    be provided the same  level of 
protection in the   context of the above standard 
aspect of security relating to the Prime Ministei 
listed   in   the   Enclosed   Broadsheet......" 
And it goes on.  

This meeting was held on 4-12-1989 at 12 
noon. Again at 3.30 p.m. this discus> sion 
took place. At 12 noon, at the meeting—it is at 
page 241 with regard to the ex-Prime 
Minister—the following decisions were taken: 

"2.   With   regard     to   the     ex-Prime 
Minister,  the  following points were noticed 
and decisions taken :— 

(i) The instruction at present is that 
Shri Rajiv Gandhi and his family should 
be provided the same level of protection 
as hitherto. SPG will continue to provide 
protection to ex-PM till a final decisior 
is taken in this regard ..............  

(iii) IB and R&AW will immediately give 
a threat assessment in respect of the ex-PM. 
Any modification of the level of protection  to  
him  will  have  to  be   based 

on the fresh threat assessment." 

It is categorically stated. In fact, he goes on 
to say that the threat perception has increased 
bec'ause of personal Vendetta. And to and 
behold, what happens on 3-1-1990 ? Mr. 
Vinod Pande, the then Cabinet Secretary 
decides, and I quote: 

"On the verbal instructions of Shri 
Seshan, the then Cabinet Secretary, the 
SPG was asked to continue providing 
security to Shri Rajiv Gandhi. This was a 
purely temporary and ad hoc arrangement.  
2.   According  to  the  SPG       Act, 

this force is meant only for the security of 
the Prime Minister and his family members. 
Its charter cannot be extended to cover ex-
Prime Minister or any one else even by an 
executive order." 

And he goes on to say in para 4: 

'The secor'ty arrangements for the Prime 
Minister are suffering adversely due to this 
extra commitment on the part of the SPG. 
This has been adversely commented by the 
security agencies." 

Sir,  let   me  remind this  House,  let me 
remind  the  Members,  let  me  remind  my 
friend, }Mr.   Jaipal,   Reddy);   sitting       on 
that bench  opposite me, that that was the lime  
when Shri Vishwanath  Pratap  Singh was   
shouting  from  the  roof-tops  that  he was   not   
interested   in   security.   This   was the   time    
when   Mr.     Vishwanath   Pratap Singh   was  
shouting  from   the      roof-tops that he did not 
require security. But when he  was   shouting 
from  the  roof-tops  that ie   was   a  man  of  
the  people,   when    he vas  shouting from the  
roof-tops  that the people would  provide him  
security,    what aas happening on the other  
side was that le   was  scared,   and  he   was  
saying      on the   other   side,    "my     security   
is       not snough."   And   he   was  voicing   
this   concern through Shri Vinod Pande, his  
Cabinet Secretary.  And at that point of time, I  
say—and I say with  some  authority— that 
there was no threat to  Shri Vishwanath Pratap 
Singh. He had not yet brought any   of   his   
controversial   measures.       He had  not yet  
taken   any  such       executive decisions  which   
would  set  a  section    of the   society   against   
him,   as    it  happened with  Shri  Rajiv  
Gandhi.  He  was   free   to move around 
amongst the people. Wte saw the proof of it 
when he went to Amritsar. Did we not see it 
when he moved   from the Golden Temple  to 
the Durgiana Man-dir without security ? At 
least, we were fold so. 
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And in spite of that, his Cabinet Sec 
retary says that security arrangements for 
the Prime Minister were not adequate. 
And he is not just a Cabinet Secretary. 
He is also the friend, the mentor, the 
fellow-traveller, the astrologer, deus ex- 
machina of Slui Vishwanath Pratap Singh 
—his Father-confessor, if you permit me 
to say that. The conspiracy, Mr. Vice-Chair- 
man, goes further and how it gets exposed, 
it is quite clear. Mr. G.S, Bajpai, Secre 
tary (Security) Cabinet Secretariat, again 
under Shri Vinod Pandey, meets Mr. 
Chidambaram.    Mr.   Chidambaram is 
0-eeting him as the representative of Shri 
Rajiv Gandhi, Leader of the opposition. 
They discuss security arrangements as 
per the original note of Mr. Seshin the 
previous Cabinet Secretary whit..' said 
that if this security is withdrawn, firstly 
there has to be a threat perception and 
secondly, adequate arrangements have to 
be made. And the adequate arrangement 
as suggested by Mr. Chidambaram was 
the posting of SPG staff to the Delhi 
Police to attach it to Shri Rajiv Gandht 
which would serve the purpose and which 
was what we were demanding all along, 
and........... 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY : It was done. 

PHRI VISHVJIT P.  SINGH  :     No,   it was 
not done.   I am coming to that   Mr. faipal, you 
cannot escape     this.      Please allow me to 
complete my arguments   And this meeting is 
recorded by Mr. Chidam- i baram in a  letter 
addressed on February ; t,   1990  to Shri  
Bajpai  when  Mr.   Bajpai ; conveyed  to   him  
the decision   to    with- ' draw the SPG. 

"I told you that it was only fair and proper 
that the alternative  arrangement should be 
first discussed with  Shri Rajiv , Gandhi or 
his representative before any change is 
made." 

This is in the first para of Mr. Chidam-
baram's letter, and as a result of that, a 1098 
RSS/94—27. 

meeting is arranged and an officer is deputed. 
Shri V. N. Singh, Additional Commissioner of 
Police, Delhi meets MT. Chidambaram. They 
discuss the security arrangements and V. N. 
Singh goes back and reports back to Mr. 
Bajpai and Mr. Bajpai writes a letter once 
again. This is DO. No.|Secy(S)|90' and date is 
not given on which he has written this letter. 
But he writes to Mt. Chidambaram when he 
says : 

"Dear Shri Chidambaram, 

As desired by you, Shri V. N. Singh, 
Addl. Commissioner of Police, Delhi, met 
you on February 3, '90 to discuss on the 
ground various protective arrangements   
for   Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi." 

And then he says : 

"Shri V. N.  Singh reported to us that 
n 

And then he says: "All this has been agreed 
to" and he writes: "We accept all your 
suggestions". And everything is over. But 
here is the catch. Mr. Chidam-baram 
immediately writes 'back on 9th February, the 
moment he receives this letter: 

"At about 1.00 p.m. today I received your 
letter dated 6-2-90 which appears to be a 
response to my letter dated 3-2-90. The 
contents of your letter have caused me great 
surprise and, it is with deep regret, that I 
hasten to write to you to set the record 
straight. 

Shri V. N. Singh, Addl. Commissioner , of 
Police called on me on the afternoon of 3-2-
90. At his request, we inspected the 
arrangements at 10-Janpath. I pointed out to 
him several inadequacies on the ground and 
also raised a number of questions on the 
arrangements proposed by the Ministry of 
Home Affairs. I did not express satisfaction 
with the arrangements. Later in the evening I 
wrote to you the letter dated 3-2-90 in 
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which I have categorically stated : "I am not 
satisfied with the alternative arrangements 
proposed to meet the requirements of 
security for Shri Rajiv Gandhi and his 
family. My discussions with Shri V. N. 
Singh are, therefore, inconclosive."   ' 

And  he   gets   no      reply to  this    letter. He 
writes : 

"I have been asked by Shri Rajiv Gandhi 
to liaise with the Government on this 
subject. You may, if you wish, ask one of 
your senior officers to meet me to continue 
the discussions." 

Mr. Bajpai does not respond to this lettei. 
He has pre-empted the issue by writing to Mr. 
Chidambaram that yes, "V.N. Singh and you 
have agreed to this and we accept that." 

In fact, Mr. Chidambaram never agreed to 
these things. Shri Rajiv Gandhi never agreed 
to this arrangement. The arrangement was not 
satisfactory. Not only Shri Rajiv Gandhi and 
Shri Chidambaram. Even he Congress Party 
protested against it. The party spokesman—
not one spokesman, but two different 
spokesman—raised this issue time and again, 
but it was answered by them saying that they 
were still spending Rs. 75 lakhs a year on Shri 
Rajiv Gandhi's security. 

SHRI SOM PAL: It was Rs. one crore. 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH: It was Rs. 75 
lakhs. It is mentioned here. 

SHRI SOM PAL: It is on record in H5 Lok 
Sabha that Rs. one crore would be spent and 
that, if necessary, the provision could be 
raised. The provision was for 240 people 
through twenty-four hours. There  were   four   
bullet-proof  cars. 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH: But you forget 
that before the security was withdrawn, the 
amount spent was Rs. 7 crores. It was one-
seventh of the amount that 

you wanted to spend on him, while the threat 
perception increased seven-fold. One to the 
power of seven was the increase in the threat 
perception to Shri Rajiv Gandhi after the 
withdrawal of the SPG. 

Therefore, the conspiracy, Mr. Vice-
Chairman, is quite clear from the exchange of 
letters and from the record published by the 
Verma Commission of Inquiry. 

Therefore, I charge, firstly, Shri V. N. Singh, 
Additional Commissioner (Police), Delhi, at 
that point of time, of being a party to the 
conspiracy to withdraw the SPG cover from 
Shri Rajiv Gandhi, thereby putting him at risk. 
It was the first contributing cause of his 
assassination. I charge Shri Gauri Shankar 
Bajpai, Secretary (Security), Cabinet 
Secretariat, at that point of time, who was a 
party to the conspiracy to withdraw the SPG 
cover and the security cover from Shri Rajiv 
Gandhi, thereby becoming the main contri-
buting factor to his assassination at the hands 
of the LTTE. I charge Shri Vinod Pande, 
Cabinet Secretary to the Government of India 
at that point of time, who was mainly 
instrumental in passing the order which 
withdrew the security cover from Shri Rajiv 
Gandhi, thereby facilitating his assassination 
by forces from across the sea. 

I lastly charge Shri Vishwanath    Pratap 
Singh, the then Prime Minister   of India, 

who acauiesced in this order and who was 
la party to  this conspiracy which removed 

!the  security  cover   given  to   Shri    Raiiv 
 Gandhi,   thereby  endangering    his  life.  I 
hold   the   root-cause  of  the   assassination 
to this arbitrary, perverse and ill-considered 

decision to withdraw the SPG cover from 
the   former   Prime    Minister,   Shri   Rajiv 

Gandhi. 

The constitutional and political responsi-
bility for this decision rests with the then 
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ter he had the SPG cover and when   he demitted 
office  SPG cover  was withdrawn and. 
therefore, he was exposed to further security 
hazard. If that is so, what do we find when  Mrs.  
Gandhi was   assassinated" At that point of time 
Mrs. Gandhi was in office.   At  her   own  
official  residence   she was   enjoying  the  
highest  security  as   any one could get,  yet  she  
was   assassinated. The  Government,   at  that 
point  of  time, was  her own   Government.     
The    entire machinery  was      her   own   
Government's machinery.    Even that 
machinery, whether it was the intelligence   or 
the police      or the   security,   could     not       
protect     her. Through   certain   Commission   
of   Inquiry or   certain    other   legal   
procedures       the subsequent       Government   
had      punished some  individuals,   but   can     
anyone     say, whether from this   side or that 
side, that through   such   Inquiry   or   through     
such awarding of punishment the real conspiracy 
or    the    forces     behind    the    conspiracy 
could be unearthed ? I keep my    fingers | 
crossed. 

Another calamity took place on the eve of  
general  elections.  So,  when  we      are 
discussing   this   matter    we   must   address 
ourselves   to   the   wider   ramifications   and in   
a   greater  perspective  of  the  event.     I do not 
blame  the Verma Commission be-cause the   
Verma Commission  was onsti-tuted with set 
terms of reference  to find : out  and  fix  the   
responsibiliy for   derelic-I tion  of duty,  
whether security was     ade-quate.   and   if   not,   
who   was   responsible  and who could be 
charged for dereliction  of duty. What do we see 
from the Verma Commission   report  ?  Enough     
has  been discussed.  The Verma   Commission      
has blamed       the        Central       Government. 
The   Verma   Commission   has   blamed   the 
Central   Intelligence      Bureau,    a   part   of 
the Central Government. The Verma Com-
mission has blamed the State Government. 

The Verma Commission has blamed the ! 
State  Intelligence   Bureau   and  the   police 

Prime   Minister,   Shri  Vishwanath  Pratap; 
Singh, who took that decision or allowed that 
decision to be taken. The then Prime 
Minister,   Shri  Vishwanath  Pratap Singh— 
please hear this, Mr. Jaipal Reddy—mignt 
have been well within his legal rights and 
administrative  jurisdiction   to  take   such  a 
decision. But he has to own up his moral 
responsibility.   While,   therefore,   the   
Government   cannot   take      any   legal   or   
administrative action against the then Prime 
Minister,   Shri   Vishwanath   Pratap   Singh, 
I   unequivocally  condemn   this    disastrous 
decision.  The   people   of  India  will  never 
forgive him.  Thank you, Mr.   Vice-Chair-
man. 

SHRI DIPBN GHOSH (West Bengal): Mr. 
Vice-Chairman, Sir, I am sorry that because 
of my preoccupation with a Committee 
meeting, I could not be present here when I 
was supported to speak. I hope Sir, you will 
excuse me for my absence at that time. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY : Therefore he 
will be given more time. 

He will get more time. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: I will not take 
much time. 

To me or to my party also, the killing of 
the ex-Prime Minister, Shri Rajiv Gandhi, 
was not simply a case of 'kill', it was a 
conspiracy to assassinate or through 
assassination of Rajiv Gandhi destabilise 
our country on the eve of general elections. 
We know, this was not the first tinw that a 
high personality like Rajiv Gandhi was 
assassinated. Earlier Mrs. Indira Gandhi 
while in office, at her own residence, at the 
Prime Minister's official residence, was 
assassinated, if he consider the assassination 
of Rajiv Gandhi with a narrow frame of 
mind, then I feel and for that matter my 
party feels that we will be overlooking 
certain other aspects involved in it. The 
question is not that while he was the Prime 
Minis- 
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machinery which is a part of that State 
Government. The Verma Commission has 
blamed the Congress (I) Party also. If we look 
and pick up certain pages or certain 
paragraphs, then, again we would lose sight of 
the perspective, the real perspective. 

I can admit, for argument's sake, what I 
heard in the oration of another V.P. Singh, Mr. 
Vishvjit Prithvjit Singh, not Mr. Vishwanath 
Pratap Singh. He has charged. I do not mind it. 
If there is a cause, if there are reasons to 
charge, one can charge. But, Sir, I know Mr. 
Suresh Pachouri and other members were 
harping for a long period of time to have a 
discussion on this Report. In the morning I 
asked why Parliament was denied adequate 
time to discuss this Report. What was the 
reason behind it ? Actually, why should 
Parliament discuss it only to apportion blames 
? Parliament should discuss it so that it can 
address :tself to this conspiracy with a wider 
ramification, in a greater perspective and take 
appropriate steps. Mr. Digvijay Singh was 
right. That is being lost s'ght of. I had an 
opportunity to speak on the report of the 
inquiry commission which was set up on the 
assassination of Mrs. Indira Gandhi. 

SHRI S. JATPAIL REDDY : The Thak-kar 
Commission. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: The Thakkar 
Commission. I had expressed my doubt if the 
forces behind the assassination which wanted 
to destabilise our country, the forces which 
never wanted our country to remain 
independent, the forces which nevei wanted 
our country to remain self-reliant, the forces 
which never wanted our country to remain 
sovereign, the forces which nevei wanted our 
country to remain united, will ever be 
identified. There was a deep conspiracy. So, 
let us go in for introspection also. There 
should be an opportunity for introspection, not 
simply apportioning the blames. 

I quote one particular paragraph. You have 
surely read it : 

"There was constant intransigence of the 
Congress Party functionaries including the 
Congress candidate to ensure the largest 
possible gathering with minimum 
arrangements to encash the visit of Rajiv 
Gandhi for better election prospects." 

Our learned colleague, Mr. Santosh Mohan 
Dev knows what happened in their meetings. 

There  is  another paragraph,  the last 
paragraph. 

"There was a total lack of awareness in 
all the paitymen that they have a 
comr.butory role in the security ar-
rangements flowing from their obligation to 
facilitate the task of the police force." 

If the party suffers from that lack of 
awareness, if the partyman suffer from that 
lack of awareness, if the partymen suffer from 
that intransigence, what will happen ? It is not 
the future of one individual leader, but it is the 
future cf the nation and the party. So, 
obvious'y, there must be some introspection. 
And this did not happen for the first time. 
Earlier also the same warty had suffered a lot 
in the assassination of Mrs. Gandhi. So, there 
should be introspection from their side. 

But, what is the awareness still ? The 
present Government is run by the same party, 
Mrs. Gandhi's part?, Rajiv Gandhi's party. 
This is the Ministry of Home Affairs 
Memorandum of Action Taken on the Report 
of the Verma Commission. The Minister of 
State for Home Affairs, Mr. Rajesh Pilot is 
not here. I quote a paragraph from it, because 
the other V.P. Singh wanted us to quote the 
entire paragraph. I quote : 
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"The Government finds it difficult to share 

the perception of the Commission on the 
lapses attributed to the Central 
Government and the Intelligence Bureau 
under this Government." 

The, Government led by the same party, of 
which Rajiv Gandhi was tits leader, rinds it 
difficult to share the perception of the Verma 
Commission. Why ? Why have the lapses 
been attributed to the Central Government and 
the IB ? It is because the IB is a Central 
Government department. IB is under the 
control of a particular Minister, the Prime 
Minister^ of the Home Minister. 

SHRI DlGVIJAY SINGH : It is only under 
the Prime Minister. No one else. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: So, that De-
partment is lo be proiected and defended. 
They have no courage to say : "Yes, my 
department has faulted." So, bureaucrat -cally 
they are trying to protest. 

Then again—the second V. P. Singh is not 
here—they have stated that after de-mitting 
office, he could not get S. P. G. Cover. That 
is why I am quoting. 

"The alternative security cover pres-
cribed for Shri Rajiv Gandhi was com-
prehensive and adequate to meet the 
perceived high-level threat." 

This is not the version of Jaipal Reddy; this 
is not the version of Digvijay Singh. This is 
the statement given by the Government 
headed by the same party. Inst now we had 
heard that with the withdrawal of the SPG, the 
whole security system had collapsed and the 
threat perception went high. But what is his 
own Government saying ? His own Govern 
ment is saying the alternative security cover 
prescribed for Shri Rajiv Gandhi was 
comprehensive and adequate to meet the 
perceived high level of threat. And then it 
continues : 

"It has been acknowledged by the 
Commission as well as admitted by Shri 
R. K. Raghvan, who was over all in 
charge of the security arrangements at 
Sriperumbudur   meeting   that   it the 
prescribed security arrangement' had been 
strictly enforced, the assassination could 
have been averted." 

Now, the comfort is sought to be drawn by 
the Home Minister in this note. This makes it 
clear that the prescribed security 
arrangements were adequate. So, even after 
the withdrawal of the SPG, the prescribed 
security arrangement was adequate in their 
perception, according to the statement of the 
present Government. And the assassination 
took place due to their faulty implementation 
on account of the negligence on the part of 
the police per'sonnel deployed at the meeting 
—the poor police personnel. 

SHRI S. JAIPAL REDDY' : Fourteen of 
whom were killed. So this is the perception of 
the present Government headed by the same 
party which was led by Mr. Rajiv Gandhi. If 
this perception continues with the present 
Government, though I don't believe in God, 
may God save us from   another catastrophe 
or calamity. 

Mr. Vice-Chairman, I am not going to take 
much of your time. I don't look at this problem 
with a narrow approach of apportioning blame 
on this party or that narty. I look at the 
problem in the pers-r.octive that there are 
forces who want to destabilise our country and 
those forces tire encouraged by the forces 
abroad. They are out to disunite, disintegrate 
our country. The sooner the Government 
perceives this threat in the real perspective,'ser 

for    the  nation.       Thank you. 
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"res ipsaloguitur—• the 
situation speaks for itself." 
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This is also an important aspect which has 

to be gone into. The Commission has 
observed that there may be an extraneous 
factor which it has not pronounced. I would 
like the Minister to lock inio this. 

Then, I come to Shri M.K. Narayanan. He 
has been keeping quiet while every thing was 
going on. I do not know whj the Commission 
has not pinned him down. The Commission 
has got simple authority to put any question 
and, as you are aware the court has got wide 
powers and the Commission also has got a lot 
of powers This is also another aspect of the. 
matter which has to be taken into 
consideraion. 

There is a rumour which is afloat in Tamil 
Nadu that he is going to become a Governor. 
It is very strongly lumoured in Tamil Nadu 
that he is going to be made a Governor. 
People who have beet charged with lapses are 
being rewarded Is this the way 'I 

Is this the way to reward the people who 
have been indicated by the Commission ? Is 
this the way that the Central Government 
should gi''e laurels to thesej people ? This is 
the point that has to be considered. 

Sir, on the 18th May, 1991, a message was 
sent—it is given at page 222 of the Report-by 
the CIMINARE, New Delhi (DD VIP 
Security) to nil CREMOS. A complete 
warning has been given on 18-5-1991, prior 
to this assassination. The message says : 

Since Shri Rajiv Gandhi is high on the 
hit list of terrorists, it is likely that a similar 
attempt may be made during his public 
meeting or other public appearances before 
and after the elections. While detailed 
advice of the nature of security 
arrangements to be provided  to  him   have  
been circulated 

from time to ime, it is reported that in view 
of last night's incident at Shri Jagdish 
Tytler's public meeting, the following 
security precautions in particular may 
always be taken during his visits to your 
State." 

Therefore, Sir, there has been a message to 
put the State Government and the police 
officials ef the State Government on guard 
and to see that notning happens because on 
the 18th, already Mr. Ttytler's life was 
endangered. They wers warned that an 
attempt may be made on the life of Shri Rajiv 
Gandhi and that they should take proper 
security steps. 

Sir, I am not pleased with the Verma 
Commission Report. But at the risk of 
repetition, I say that the Governor is the 
person who must be squarely held 
responsible. He must have been sent out. And 
now at least he should be sent out of the State. 
Thank you, Sir. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED S1B-
TBY RAZI) : Shri N. Giri Prasad -not 
present; Shri Ram Gopal Yadav—not present; 
Shri Subramanian Swamy—not present.   
Smt.   Satya  Bahin. 
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that is the base thing to ensure safety. It was 
pointed out m the Report that the police 
officers did not use even the metal detectors. 

At page 66, the role of the highest officers 
of Tamil Nadu was discussed. Here, it is stated 
that R. K. Raghvan, IGP (Forest Cell) who was 
placed in overall charge of the security 
arrangements for Rajiv Gandhi at 
Sriperumbudur by DGP, B.P. Rangaswamy is 
responsible for this lapse as the police officer 
in charge. The ASP, V. Ramakrishnan, was to 
assist the DSP in this task and his duties as 
ASP coupled with his continuous presence at 
the venue of the meeting from the afternoon of 
that day are sufficient to hold him also 
responsible for this lapse along with R. K. 
Raghavan. In addition to them, one Mr. 
Mathur was also there. As my friend, Shri 
Narayanasamy, has put it, they were rewarded. 
They were taken back into service. 

As my friend,   Mr.   Narayanasamy,  pu it,   
they have been taken   back  into tervice. 
Further, there  is  also E   rumour   arumour is 
afloat,  that  they are all going to   be elevated  
fo the higher posts. Whal is this ? The whole  
House  is  concern 'd, not only the  whole   
House   but  also   Ihe whole   country  and   
the   entire  world  are concerned,  about the  
loss  of a statesman of  this  country  and   the   
State     Gove'n- ment is going   to give laurels  
by way of promotions to them. This  is 
unbelievable. f would request the  Home   
Minister     to look into  this very seriously nd 
see how these   things  could  be   rectified.   
He  must find out how these officers have 
been taken back  in spite of this verdict and in 
spite of this indictment  and   in  spite  of    
this finding by the Commission.   So,  the  
state ef affairs is bad and shoul.l be set right. 

Then I would like to come to page 68 which 
is also very important. In para 13.11, it has 
been stated: 

"Accordingly, the lapse or dereliction of 
duty by the Tamil Nadu police force is clear 
beyond doubt. This leads to the logical 
consequence of rendering the Government 
of Tamil Nadu responsible for the lapse of 
its police force." 

Having said that  that the Tamil Nadu 
police force is   responsible, how is it that the 
Commission is keeping mum on    the 
Governor ?   Still   the   Governor   is   conti-
nuing, and that is the most tragic part. He is   
continuing   there   still   even   after   this 
dastardly  assassination,    even   after    this 
inquiry  and  even   after  this   finding  and 
even   after   all   these   occurrences.      What 
should  be done ?     He should be    sacked 
and this is my submission to this House. Why  
is he   continuing still  ? That  is my question 
which has to be answered by the Home   
Minister.   After   all,   you   are    appointing 
the Governors and if a Governor is not doing 
his job well, and if he found guilty,   he   
should   be   sacked.   When  officers  can   be 
sacked,   why  not   the Head of the State ? At 
least, on moral grounds, he should  have 
resigned. But he has not resigned and is 
continuing. 

I now come to page 73 wherein it has been 
said : 

"In this background, the assassination of 
Rajiv  Gandhi  by  the  mode  adopted could  
not  be  unforeseeable  to  the   IB; the premier 
intelligence agency, from the facts known to 
it. Failure of the Intelligence   Bureau   to   
fully      and   properly calibrate       this      
threat       foresee   the attack      made  and       
disseminate    information    with  the     
requisite    further guidelines and instructions 
to the State agencies, was a lapse of the IB 
and the MHA amounting to a contributory 
factor.  If this lapse  of the IS was due to any 
extraneous factor after proper calibration  of 
the threat affecting its professionalism,   it  
would  be  worse     awl would need  
correction for   the future." 
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for the election, Mrs. Maragatham 
Chandrasekhar said, "No, we will hold it here 
itself." The templs land is surrounded by 
bushy areas and there are places where people 
can hide themselves. The Police observed this 
and said from the security point of view, "You 
shouk not hold the meeting hers. Please hold 
it in the school ground area." To this, the 
party workers retorted saying, "We have 
finalised to hold the meeting at the same 
place. You have tie business at all." Now, 
how could you point your fingers at the police 
? It is only your party people and the 
candidate who were more part'cular about the 
gathering than about the security of Rajiv 
Gandhi. This has been observed by the 
Commission alsc. The Commission says That 
they were bothered only about ;he gathering 
of the people unmindful of the security risk to 
the ex-Prime Minister. 

...unmindful of the tecuriy risk of the ex-
Prime Minister who came down to 
Sriperumbudur all the way from Delhi. He 
"went there in spite of some difficulty— his 
plane was not all right, it was got repaired and 
all that. Above all these things, the main thing 
which had caused this calamity was the venue 
of the meeting I can say this in view of the 
finding of the Commission. 

I would now like to give the gist of what is 
stated at page 55. I don't want to read it 
because it will take a lot of time. Ten 
photographs w;re taken by Haribabu which 
were retrieved bv one of the police officers. 
They had given a lot of information about the 
culprits. Here, it is mentioned . 

"It may also be mentioned that in the first 
photograph (A|2), the unidentified female 
with a garland in her hand between Latha 
Kann'in and her daughter, Kokila, is clearly 
an unidentified female seen also in the 
ninth photograph (Aj9) standing just behind 
Kokila which is evident from the identical 
dress 

of     the        unidentified        female        in 
both these photographs and the other 
genera] appearance in addilion to the string 
of flowers tied to her hair seen in both the 
photographs.  It is   this un- 
ident tied female whose mangled body with 
the torso blown off and  the head 
and l'mbs scattered was found at the venue 
after the bomb blast indicating the 
maximum impact of the explosion.** 

Sir, I would like to know who is res-
ponsible, Latha Kannan nr her daughter, rhey 
were clearly near the human bomb. Latha 
Kannan was said to be the COTV gress party 
secretary. How was it that this unidentified 
female gained entrance unless these people 
had permitted ? The Commission pointed cut 
that had Rajiv Gandhi been 20 feet away from 
the bomb Mast place, he could have been 
saved, he could have escaped with some in-
juries. At whose behest was this human bomb 
found in the midst of the secretary of the 
Congress party moving about freely at the 
venue ? She was found not in one place but in 
two places. I want the 'Home Minister to 
examine deeply as to who is responsible. I 
don't want to conclude. He can himself 
conclude: 

Sir, at page 65, the proximate cause for the 
assassination was said to be the lapse of police 
officers who allowed the people to be nearer 
the sterile area of Shri Rajiv Gandhi. Efforts 
were made. Police officers were there. Seven 
police officers died and forty five persons 
were injured. The Commission stated that the 
prox mate cause was the lapse of the police 
officers to restrict the entry and to prevent 
entry therein of any unauthorised, unidentified 
and unnecessary person and to permit the 
entry of those present only after proper 
checking with metal detectors. This is most 
important. Where ther* is a security risk, even 
we are searched. In the airports, whether you 
are an MP or not, your baggage is thoroughly 
searched. We cannot complain about it 
because 
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will find that it indicts the Central Govern-
ment, the State Government, the State police 
officers, the Congress party workers and other 
people. But J was shocked to see that the head 
of the State, i.e. the Governor, who was 
heading the adreis-tration of Tamil Nadu, is 
not mentioned in the Report. There is nut a 
single line about him in the Verma 
Commission Report. I don't know why the 
Governor has been spared. How did it happen 
? He should have been the first person to be 
indicated. How is it that the Verma Com-
mission lost sight of it? For reasons best 
known to the Verma Commission, the 
Governor has been spared. There is nc 
reference about the Governor in the Report. 
At whose behest it has been done we don't 
know. Some of the hon. Mem bers have 
quoted the Verma Commissior Report. Now, I 
would also like to refei to the Verma 
Commission Report. 

Sir, I wish to refer to Page 12 with regard to 
cassettes. Three cassettes were found and with 
regatd to these three cassettes, the 
Commission observed that it was 
extraordinary that the video cassettes 
pertaining to 21st May, that is, the incident of 
the assasination of Rajiv Gandhi, appeared 
blurred in the crucial portion, soon after 
showing arrival of Rajiv Gandhi at the venue 
and presentation of a few shawls and towels to 
him before the bomb blast. The next line is 
very important. It says, "This appears more 
unusual when compared with the video 
cassettes of the alleged dry tuns produced by 
the SIT of earlier meetings which are clear 
throughout." liven the Horse would recall that 
a point was raised in the presence of our 
Horns Ministei whether there was erasure of 
the cassetur. We suspected that erasure had 
been done and the Home Minister had said—it 
is still fresh in my memory-"! can't go deep 
into the matter. The matter is under in-
vestigation and we can't open it. Anyway, I 
will enquire into the matter and keep this in 
my mind." Now, it is a relevant factor because 
the Commission Report has 

also pointed out, "it is umuual." Therefore, the 
Commission also suspects that somebody had 
tampered with that. Who is that person who 
has tampered with the cassette ? With regard 
to the other cassettes, they are quite okay and 
very clear in all aspects. Therefore, some 
tampering lias been done with and it should be 
found out. And I put it for the consideration of 
our Home Minister. I have repeated it for the 
second time because the Verma Commission 
Report has also come out. Now with regard to 
the Coimniss-sion's inspection—the 
Commission has laboriously done the job—I 
shall read a few lines from Page 13. Actually, 
two places were suggested for the venue of the 
meeting. One is the temple land where the 
assassination took place and the other one is 
the school ground. Both the places were 
visited by the Commission and the 
Commission says, "For a comparison of the 
temple land with the school ground suggested 
as the alternative venue, the Comm'ssion also 
inspected the school ground. The contrast of 
the school ground with the temple land was 
obvious and (here can be no doubt that the 
school ground was far more suitable as the 
venue of a public meeting. The school ground 
was even and had some buildings around it 
providing better means of access control with 
availability of a separate entrance for the VIP. 
The size of the school ground did not appear 
inadequate to accommodate the expected 
getheiing for Rajiv Gandhi's meeting. These 
observations summarise the points of com-
parison of the two sites." Therefore, I would 
request the Home Minister to find as out as to 
who had manoeuvred the plan and inspected 
the area. We have information where the 
police seemed to have said that that was not a 
suitable place and the venue had to be 
changed to the school ground as it was 
dangerous to hold the meeting at the temple 
land for security reasons. Now, we are Wani-
ng the police. It is also the finding of the   
Commission  that   the  then  candidate 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYfcD SIB-
TBY RAZI) : I would like to draw the 
attention of the House that still we are 
discussing the Verma Commission Report. 
The Legislative Business is still pending, We 
have got one statement by Shri Balram Jakhar 
and then clarifications on another statement. 
We have to finisn all the business today. I 
would request the Members to be brief. 

SHRI TINDIVANAM G. VENKATA-
RAMAN: Mr. Vicc-Chairman, I share the 
sentiments and views expressed by the hon. 
Members regarding the Verma Commission 
Report. This ghastly assassination of Shri 
Rajiv Gandhi took place on 21-5-1991 when 
Tamil Nadu was under Governor's rule. Since 
the Cetitral Government was headed by Mr. 
Chandra Shekhar, he invoked Article 356 of 
the Constitution and dismissed the DMK 
Government. I will be failing in my duty if I 
don't place on record that Mr. Rajiv Gandhi 
visited Tamil Nadu 13 times when Dr. 
Kalaignar was the Chief Minister. He visited 
every nook and corner of the State villages, 
towns as well as cities. He was safely seen off  
to Delhi each   time. 

I want to make one point very clear. Mr. 
Pachouri has mentioned that the DMK 
meeting which was scheduled to be held at 
Sriperumbudur on that particular day was 
cancelled. It is true. A letter was sent by a 
person in the higher ranks of police officers, 
fo our leader saying, "Shri Rajiv Gandhi is 
visiting Sriperumbudur on that day; therefore, 
please try to cancel your meeting. He agreed 
to it. On that part'cular day our leader was 
canvassing in Harbour constituency from 
where he was contesting the assembly 
election. It was announced m the newspapers 
as well. 

Now, I come to the Verma Commission 
Report. If you read the Report, you 

 

 

[14 MAY. 1993] 
Discussion    430 



441    Short Duration [14 MAY, 1993] Discussion    442 

 

 
 



443    Short Duration [RAJYA SABHA] Discussion   444 

 

 
 



445    Short Duration [14 MAY 1993] Discussion   446 

 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH : Sir, I have a 
point of order. He is levelling an allegation 
against a Judge of the Supreme Court. I don't 
think it is allowed under the rules of this 
House. 

 

 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB 
TEY RAZI) : I will advise the hon 
member.... 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH : 1 will advise 
the hon. Member not to level such 
allegations. 

THE LEADER OF THE OPPOSITION 
(SHRI SIKANDER BAKHT) : He is within 
his bounds. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIBr 
TEY RAZI) : I will request the speaker to 
restrain himself from casting aspersions 
against a Judge. So, be careful while 
speaking. 

SHRI VISHVJIT P. SINGH : He is quoting 
Mr. Deshmukh. The correspondence he is 
talking about has not even been produced 
before the Verma Commission. Neither is it 
part of the Verma Commission Report. What 
is he talking about ? 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-TEY 
RAZI) : Mr. Som Pal, you please speak. 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-
TEY RAZI) : Shri S.P. Gautam, you are the 
last speaker. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : Mr. V.P. 
SINGH is criminally liable. 

SHRI SOM PAL : I don't react to such 
irresponsible statements. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY Whether 
ycu respond to it or not, you go through the 
report. 

SHRI SURESH PACHOURI : Point of 
correction.. {Interruptions).. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-
TEY RAZI) :' Let me listen to what he wants 
to say. 

 

"The intelligence report communicated 
by circular memorandum No. 32|VS|30(C) 
2 dt. 23rd January, 1991 : "As per the 
IG's instructions on the security of Shri 
Rajiv Gandhi, the following action is 
required to be taken  :  Reviving the 
quality of staff posted at 10 Janpath" which 
was the residence of Shri Rajiv-Gandhi "as 
many of them are from older age gioup and 
bound to have slower reflexes  in  case of  any 
contingency.    The 
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staff should also be provided with periodic 
training  in   firing,   etc.,  more frequently. 
The vehicles attached for pilot and escort 
duties".... (interruptions) 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-
TEY RAZI) : Mr. Pachouri, please take vour 
seat. Yes, Mr. Gautam. 

 

 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-TEY 
RAZI) : Mr. Som Pd, I have permitted Mr. 
Pachouri. Let me listen to what he wants to 
say. 

 

"The drivers should be given training as 
their performance is not up to the mark which 
resulted in an accident of bullet-proof car. . 
(interruptions) . . The communication system 
with security is not effective".. 
(Interruptions). 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-
TEY RAZI) : I am not permitting, yes, Mr. 
Gautam. 

 

 

This is not right at all.. (Interruptions').. 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-
TEY RAZ1) : Now you are wasting time. I 
know everything. You please try to conclude 
within ten minutes: 

 

"According to Mr. Subramaniam, Mr. 
Ramarmn-thy had advance information that 
things were not all right at Sri-perumbudur 
but did not pass it on to concerned 
auhorities. "Mr. Ramamnrthy had an 
obligation to pay attention to the security 
requirement of Gandhi as he himself was a 
threatened person." Mr.    Subramaniam   
said." 

"Sivarasan, the man who masterminded 
Rajiv Gandhi's assassination, not only 
cultivated the TNCC(I) President, Mr. 
Vazhapadi K. Ramamurthy, with whom he 
reportedly got himself photographed, but 
also a functionary at the AICC(I) 
headquarters in New Delhi. Through this 
contact, he came to know of Gandhi's Tamil 
Nadu tour programme at least 48 hours 
ahead of die TNOC(I)   or   the   State   
Police." 

 

 

 



455    Short Duration [RAJYA SABHA] Discussion   456 

 

 

"His holiness, Sri Varda Etbiraja Jeer 
Matathipathi, under whose jmisdictfon 
Arulmigu Athikesava Perumal Temple 
comes, was willing to assist SIT, with 
names of Congressmen in Sriperumbudur 
who had become rich overnight after the 
assassination. And his offer was ignored." 
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The action that you have taken is not at all 
sufficient; not only insufficient but rather 
absurd. 
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THE MINISTER OF HOME AFFAIRS 
(SHRI S. B. CHAVAN) : Mr. Vice Chairman, 
I must admire yhe patience of the hon. 
Members, especially the last Member, who, in 
fact, never felt tired about saying certain 
things which, according to him, were very 
relevant. Anyway, I don't want to take more 
time of the House. I have prepared a statement 
so that all the points which the hon. Members 
have made can be covered. But before that I 
must clear two points. One was about the con-
stituency from which Mrs. M: Chandra-
sekharan was contesting election. Since she 
belongs to the other House, I am rot supposed 
to make a reference. But her name has been 
referred to a number of times. She said that 
she had not actually invited Shri Rajiv Gandhi 
to her constituency. It was not for taking any 
political advantage. 

She got the  information  only  on  59th 
May that Mr. Rajiv Gandhi was   coming 
there. 

All the places were shown to the police and 
the police approved that particular place. At 
the other place where she wanted to have the 
meeting, they said, "There is another meeting 
which is going on and the other political party 
has reserved the place: And, you have to have 
it at a distance of more than 1 km. That is how 
this place was chosen. Sir, there is another 
point which the hon. Minister has raised and, 
that is, about the cassettes, the charge that the 
cassettes were sent to the FBI. I have got the 
report and on one cassette, which was an 
authentic one, they bave certified that this was 
not tampered with at all. 

Sir, May 21, 1991, will bo remembered as a 
black day in the history of our nation. The 
tragedy that occurred on this day at 
Sriperumbudur had shocked the conscience   
of the  entire   world.  A  great 

 



461    Short Duration [14 MAY. 1993] Discussion     462 

 
ron of this country was snatched away in the 
prime of his youth. Shri Rajiv Gsndhi had 
sacrificed his life for the unity and integrity of 
this country carrying forward his family's 
tradition. 

I share the anguish and anger expressed by 
the Hon. Members of this House in the debate 
on the Report of the Verma Commission of 
Enquiry. Such emotions pre' understandable 
when we discuss the circumstances which led 
to the assassination of a leader loved and 
adored b> millions of his countrymen. It is 
important that the lapses which permitted the 
tragedy to take place should not be allowed to 
recur. Those responsible should be identified 
and suitably dealt with. Hon. Members have 
dwelt at length on the circumstances under 
which the SPG cover for Shri Rajiv Gandhi 
ceased when he was no longer the Prime 
Minister. It has been stated that the 
withdrawal of the SPG cover was the root 
cause of the tragic assassination. The Verma 
Commission of Inquiry has held that though 
the proximate cause of the assassination was 
the failure of the Tarnil Nadu police to 
enforce the access control measure? strictly 
the withdrawal of the SPG cover Shri Rajiv 
Gandhi was unjustified. The Government 
agrees with this findings. Ac cording to the 
SPG Act, 1988, SPG proximate security was 
not admissible to Shr Rajiv Gandhi after he 
ceased to be Prime Minister. Following the 
withdrawal of the SPG proximate security 
cover from Shri Rajiv Gandhi, in the first 
week of February, 1990, Shri Chidambaram 
and Shri Kamlapati Tripathi, of the Congress 
(I) party, had lodged a strong protest as the 
threat to the security of Shri Rajiv Gandhi had 
not dimilished. We have examined the 
available records relating to the replacement 
of the SPG to provide security cover to Shri 
Rajiv Gandhi. On 4th December, 1989, a 
meeting was taken by the then Cabinet 
Secretary, when it was decided to continue 
the existing secuntj arrangements and to call 
for a fresh threat   assessment.  On   14th      
December 
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1989, he submitted a note to the ihcil 
Prime Minister listing the modifications 
which were proposed to be introduced in 
the security arrangements for Shri Rajiv 
Gandhi. This note was seen by the then 
Prime Minister on January 3, 1990, and 
the Prime Minister desired that the matter 
on brought to the Cabinet. Based on the 
fresh threat assessment, a note dated 
January 23, 1990, prepared by the Secre 
tary (Security) was considered by the 
Cabinet in the meeting held on January 
30, 1990. As per the minutes of the afore 
said   meeting  circulated  on   12th      April, 
1990, the Cabinet had decided that further 
action in the matter may be taken "in the 
1 cht of discussions" held. A note on the 
security arrangements for protected persons 
was considered by the Cabinet en 1st Feb 
ruary, 1990. Consequent to the decisions 
taken in the meeting, the Ministry of 
Home Affairs ssued on 3rd February, 
1990. Comprehensive guidelines to the 
Chief Secretaries of all the State Govern 
ments and UT Administrations regarding 
security arrangements in respect of Shri 
Rajiv Gandhi and his family members. 

In the debate, the hon. Members have also 
made reference to the note of the then Cabinet 
Secretary, Shri V. C. Pande, dated January 30, 
1990, in which he bad informed the Prime 
Minister that he (i.e. the Cabinet Secretary) 
had approved that Shri Rajiv Gandhi's security 
arrangements outside Delhi be left to the State 
Governments. We have looked into the related 
lecords and found that Shri Pande nut up his 
note of 30th January, 1990 to the Prime 
Minister for approval This note was discussed 
by the Cabinet in its meeting held the same 
day, i.e., 30th January, 1990. It is, thus, clear 
that the Cabinet had dealt with the matter. It 
will be recalled that the Verma Commission 
has found that the Central Government's 
decision on 30th January, 1990 was 
"prompted more by lack of proper perception   
or   the  requisite   will   than    the 
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stated difficulties". There appears no reason to 
debate this finding of the Commission. 
Government, therefore, accepts this finding. 

The hon. Members hav, referred to the 
observations of the Commission about the 
behaviour of some workers .of the Cong-ress-I 
Party at the public meeting at Sriperumbudur 
on the fateful day. The Verma Commission 
has recommended corrective measures. The 
Home Minister has already discussed the 
guideline? with the leaders of the major 
political parties which will help in maintaining 
orderlines in future, reducing the possibility of 
in-disciplined behaviour exhibited by the 
political workers. These guidelines are being 
issued. The hon. Members have observed that 
no action has been taken either by the Central 
Government or by the State Government for 
any lapse or dereliction of duty against any 
Government officers. We have obtained .'he 
explanations of these officers on the obser-
vations of the Commission. Those found 
guilty  will  not  be   spared. 

In so far as the State Government of Tamil 
Nadu is concerned, the Commission has held 
that the extent of individual responsibility for 
the lapses of the State Government is to be 
determined depart-mentally. The State 
Government of Tamil Nadu have reported that 
a H'gh-Levsl Committee has been set up on 
4th May, 1993 to submit a report within one 
month on the acton to be taken by the State 
Government. The matter shall be further 
pursued with the State Government. 

I -would like to assure the hon. Members that 
Government is determined to take all .  

necessary  action  on  the  findings  and  re-
commendations of the Verma Commission. 

(Ends). 

 

 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-rHY 
RAZI) : Now, we will take up the next item . 
(interruption) . .You know, discussion on the 
previous subject is over. The Home Minister 
has given his reply... (interruption) . . 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : Sir, I have 
to ask some specific questions. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED S1R-
I"EY RAZI) : Please sit down. . (interrup-

ion)....   Please take your seat. 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : Sir, the 
Tamil Nadu Government has reinstated the 
police  officers. . (interruptions)... 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-TEY 
RAZI) : Please take your seat... 
(interruptions)... 

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : Sir, Mr. 
Raghavan and others had been suspended. 
Now, they have been reinstated and one of 
them has been promoted also. Has the Central 
Government done anything in this 

†[ ]  Transliteration in Arabic Script. 
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regard ? What action the Committee ap-
pointed by the Tamil Nadu Government is 
going to take ? 

SHRI S. B. CHAVAN : Actually, we also 
came to know 'hey have reinstated the officers 
and a promotion has also been given to one of 
the officers. We will write to the Chief 
Minister of Tamil Nadu that those who were 
involved in this incident should not be 
promoted. 

THE   VICE-CHAIRMAN   (SYED   SIB- 
1EY  RAZI)   :   We     will   take  up.............  
(interruptions) . .. 

 

THE EMPLOYMENT OF MANUAL 

SCAVENGERS AND CONSTRUCTION 

OF DRY LATRINES (PROHIBITION; 

BILL, 1993. 

THE MINISTER OF URBAN DEVE-
LOPMENT (SHRIMATI SHBILA KAUL): 
Sir, I beg to move  

"That the Bill to provide for the 
prohibition of employment of manual 
scavengers as well as construction of dry 
latrines and for the regulation of cons-
truction and maintenance of water-seal 
latrines and for matters connected therewith 
or incidental thereto, as passed by the Lok 
Sabha, be taken into consideration." 

Sir, as the honourable Members are ware, 
the programme for the liberation af scavengers 
through low-cost sanitation has been in 
operation for quite some time through 
different schemes operated by different 
agencies in the cmntry. However, it is the 
paramount consideration of the Government 
that the social evil of manual scavenging of 
human excreta has to be eradicated from the 
country in a time-bound manner. Despite the 
fact that efforts have been made towards low-
cost sanitation and provision ot subsidies and 
loans simultaneously by the Housing and 
Urban Development Corporation for the 
construction of water seal latrines or for 
conversion of dry latrines into water-seal flush 
latrines, the practice of employing persons for 
carrying nightsoil on therr heads is still 
prevalent in some parts of the country. 

The Directive Principle enshrined in article 
47 of the Constitution requires the State to 
raise the standard of living of the people of 
India and improve the public health which is 
required to be implemented. The municipal 
laws are net stringent enough to eradicate this 
dehumanising practice of manual scavenging 
of human excreta and the practice of 
employing fellow humanbeings for carrying 
nightsoil on their heads. 

This august House will agree with me that 
the existence of dry latrines and lack af 
stringent laws and the basic reasons for the 
continuance of this evil practice. 
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It is, therefore, proposed that there will be a 
uniform legislation providing for prohibition 
of employment of manual scavengers as well 
as construction or continuance of dry latrines 
in the country. Since the subject-matter 
"manual scavenging", in all its pith and 
substance, falls within the realm of State 
Legislatures, we sought the co-operation of the 
State Governments in enabling the Parliament 
to undertake necessary uniform legislation 
required to eradicate the social evil of manual 
scavenging. Since the States of Andhra 
Pradesh, Goa, Karnataka, Maharashtra, 
Tripura and West Bengal have empowered 
Parliament to undertake necessary legislation, 
the Government has brought forward the 
present Bill before this august House. It will 
initially be applicable to the aforesaid six 
States and Union territories. 

In order to make the law stringent, it te 
proposed to make employment of manual 
scavengers or construction or continuance of 
dry latrines a punishable1, offence. 

I would like to assure the honourable 
Members that the manual scavengers who 
would be liberated from this dehumanising job 
will be offered alternative employment or such 
financial assistance as ! may be envisaged 
under the various j schemes to be formulated 
even though there may be financial constraints. 

Even though the State Governments are 
required to prepare schemes, make ar-
rangements for inspection and utilise the : 
implementing machinery of their own, yet, in 
view of the importance of the matter, the 
Central Government would be constituting 
Monitoring Committees and Project 
Committees. 

The Project Committees will be apprais- ing 
all the schemes for the construction of water-
seal latrines in the   country and 

the Monitoring Committees will be Moni-
toring the various programmes undertaken by 
the State Governments. The Central 
Government can also constitue such other 
Committees as may be felt necessary. Thus 
the Central Government will take all possible 
steps to make the manual scavengers free. 

The target is to bring in the reforms before 
the close of the Eighth Plan. The proposals 
included in the Bill are for the benefit of the 
downtrodden. Equally important are health 
and sanitation aspects. The Bill will no doubt 
bring in better environment and healthier 
living :onditions for one and all. 

As mentioned earlier, the State Legislates of 
Andhra Pradesh, Goa, Karnataka, 
Maharashtra, Tripura and West Bengal have 
passed a Resolution enabling us to undertake 
the legislation. The Bill will, therefore, be 
applicable to the States of Andhra Pradesh, 
Goa, Karnataka, Maharashtra, Tripura and 
West Bengal and to the Union Territories. The 
other States can adopt a Resolution. It is my 
earnest hope that they will take necessary 
steps in [hat direction. I further hope that tne 

Bill will receive the unanimous support of all 
the sections of the House. 

Sir, I now commend the Bill for the 
consideration of the House. 

[The   question   was   proposed. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB- 
TEY RAZI): There are four speakers in 
the list. It is a very non-controversial Bill. 
May I request the Members that if they 
agree, we may pass it .........  

DR. NARREDDY THULASI REDDY : 
tAndhra  Pradesh):  No,   I  want  to  speak. 

THE VICE CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-TBY 
RAZI): All right. I request the Members to be 
brief. 
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*SHRI J. S. RAJU (Tamil Nadu): Mr. 
Vice-Chairman, Sir, I rise to speak on behalf 
of DMK on this Bill that seeks to abolish 
manual scavenging in the country. There has 
been long pending demand for abolishing this 
inhuman practice. Asking a man to carry 
nightsoil is a crime and amounts to 
dehuroanisation. We, Indians should be 
ashamed of ourselves for having this  practice   
in  our  country  to  this  day. 

Some half-hearted attempts were made to 
put an end to this inhuman pracice. But 
nothing succeded for want of sincerity of 
purpose. In 1968, during the centenary 
celebrations of Mahatma Gandhi a scheme 
was launched to abolish construction of dry 
latrines. Even late Shri Rajiv Gandhi included 
this in the 20-point programme. At one time 
the Government provided 75 per cent loan 25 
per cent grant for constructing flush-out 
latrines. In the Fifth-Five year plan, the 
Government selected 30—40 cities and 
provided 100 per cent financial assistance for 
the construction of flush-out latrines. Yet, 
somehow these schemes were not accepted by 
the people in general. 

*English translation of the  original speech 
dilivered in Tamil. 

Sir, it is reported that there are about 4 lakh 
people involved in manual scavan?-•ng. I 
don't know whither the figure 's just 4 lakh or 
more. Whatever be it, these people are an 
isolated lot in the socio!y. We have a strange 
social set-up in India One who dirties belongs 
to higher class, one who cleans belongs to 
lower class. This is the dictum of our society. 
Here, the working class is dubbed as the lower 
class in society and that section of society 
which lives on the sweat of others is glorified 
as upper class. Because of the paucity of time 
I don't want to go into the origin of this class 
division. Then I have to travel to Vedic period 
which I don't intend to do now. 

Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir. Mahatma Gandhi 
came down heavily on the practice of manual 
scavenging. But unfortunately very little has 
been done in the direction of abol shing it. 
These neglected people do not own anything. 
They don't have lands, they don't have shelters 
and they don't have enough food to eat. They 
are also unable to take up any ether avocation 
because of literacy. Since the yoke of manual 
scavanging has broken their skill, it is difficult 
to place them in an alternate avocation. 
Because of the fact that this subject is under 
State List, the entire burden of removing this 
evil practice lies with the stoles. But, no State 
has taken enough steps to abolish this sin 
against man. Though the Centre has to bring a 
Bill for doing away with this practice, under 
the Constitution the States have to pass n. 

resolution to this effect and send it to the 
Centre. The States of West Bengal. Tri-pura, 
Maharashtra and Karnataka have already sent 
such resolutions. But I regret to say that my 
State of Tamil Nadu has not yet sent such a 
resolution. I don't know what important matter 
engages for ever the attent on of Tamil Nadu 
Government. I hope Tamil Nadu and other 
states will send the monetary resolution at the 
earliest. 

[14 MAY 1993] 

 

 

Shri 'Mohammed   Amin—not    present. 
Shri N.  Giri Prasad—not present. Shri J.S 
Raju. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-TEY 
RAZI) : Your name is not there, Please 
cooperate. 
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The Bill envisages to give powers to the 
States for executing the proposals of the Bill. 
For doing this the States need funds. But we 
all know the financial position of the States. 
The Panchayats, Municipalities and 
Corporations find it difficult even to pay the 
electricity bills These local bodies have to 
look upto the State Government for paying 
the salary, of the employees. This is the 
situation today. Now the scheme under 
consideration requires crores of rupees. Even 
a National Commission is likely to be set up 
for the purpose. But I feel, the fund proposed 
to be allocated by the centre is not sufficient 
to carry out such a huge scheme. 

Sir, late Shri Rajiv Gandhi wanted to take 
India to 21st Century. Unfortunately, he is not 
with us today. This Government which 
promises to fulfil his dreams has allocated a 
meagre amount. I want the Centre to admit 
this fact. There are about 3,700 cities, and 
lakhs of Panchayats and thousands of 
Municipalities in India. Ol this only 75 lakh 
people have the facility of flush-out latrines. 
Out of this, 55 lakh people live in cities and 
the rest in villages. The rest do not hav; this 
facility. For constructing a flush-cut latrine, 
we need five to six thousand rupees. So, for 
carrying out such stupendous task, the 
Government  should   allocate   more   funds. 

In India, we have a few planned cities like 
Chandigarh and Pondicherry. Out of 3,700 
cities only 217 have under-ground drainage. It 
is not only the question of providing flush-out 
latrines but also that of enhancing the standard 
of living of these manual scavangirs. For all 
this we need huge fund. Right from 1967 when 
Dr. Anna became Chief Minister of Tamil 
Nadu and thereafter, right through the time of 
Dr. Kalaingnoar who succeeded him. our 
DMK Government launched various schemes 
for the welfare of the poor. A scheme 
popularly known as 'Slum Clearance Scheme' 
was launched by setting up Slum  Clearance 
Board.  They built lot 

of houses for the poor. When, the late Babu 
Jagjivan Ram visited Tamil Nadu for opening 
some of the residential buildings built under 
the schemes, he appreciated the step and 
wanted such schemes to be undertaken in 
Bihar. That time, most of the houses built in 
Tamil Nadu were given to scavangers and 
other such poor people. 

Sir, I insist on allocation of more funds 
because, the rehabilitation will need lot of 
money. They have fallen victims to social 
evils like gambling and drinking. They have 
to be redeemd from this trap and provided a 
better atmosphere where they can live with 
their families happily, Otherwise, this 
Government will be accused of shedding 
crocodile tears. Therefore, I request the 
Hon'ble Minister to allocate more funds for 
the total execution of the proposals. I support 
this Bill on behalf of DMK. 

DR. NARREDDY THULASI REDDY Mr. 
Vice-Chairman, Sir, I have some reservations 
on this Bill. The objectives of this Bill are 
extremely good. But bringing forward this 
Bill at this present juncture will create more 
problems than solving the problem. 

Sir, the carrying of night soil on the head or 
by hands is an obnoxious practice, an inhuman 
practice. It is against self-respect. It is a 
stigma on our social fabric and a blot on the 
nation. Therefore, it should be eradicated. 

For the eradication of this obnoxious 
practice, two things must be done. One is, 
liberation and rehabilitation of the manual 
scavengers. This is one thing. The second 
thing is, conversion of the already ex sting dry 
latiincs into water-seal latrines and 
construction of new water-seal latrines. These 
two things must be done. Now, the present 
Bill deals with the second issue only. 

Sir, accordingly to one estimate, there are  
4  lakh manual     scavengers in      the 
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country. There are 53 lakh dry latrines in the 
country which need to be converted into water-
seal latrines, according to this Bill. There are 
69 lakhs dwellings without any latrine. 
Therefore, according to the present estimate, 
we have to construct 1 crore 22 lakh water-seal 
latrines. For this, we require Rs. 6,000 crores. 
Against this, the Planning Commission has 
allotted only Rs. 375 crores in the whole Eighth 
Five-Year Plan. This means, only 6 per cent of 
the requirement has been allotted. With this 
meagre amount, we can convert 7.2 lakh dry 
latrines into water-seal latrines and we can 
construct 6.9 lakh water-sesl latrines, i.e. a total 
of 14.1 lakh water-seal latrines can be 
constructed with   this   amount. 

The requirement is 1,22,00,000 With 
this meagre amount we make 14.1 lakh 
water-seal latrines and we can libeiate 
51,000 scavengers only. There are 4 lakh 
inanual scavengers. In the entire Eighth 
Plan we can liberate only 50,000 manual 
scavengers. So, there Is financial cons 
traint, there is this fund problem.  

 

Secondly, according to one estimate,  
this problem is not existing in rural areas.  
They   have  their  own   practices. This  
problem is existing in urban areas. In I towns 
below 10,000 population this problem is to the 
extent of 6? per cent; bet'-ween 10,000 and 
20,000 population this problem is 50 per cent 
and between one lakh and 5 lakh population 
this prob'em is 20 per cent. So, it is existing in 
towns. We all know, there is a problem of 
space in towns. According to this Bill there are 
enough community water-seal laliines, 
especially in the backward and slum ateas, but 
in towns there is the problem of space. 

The third problem is about maintenance 
because of water scarcity. Most of the towns 
are reeling under severe drinking water crisis. 

So, there is the problem of funds, there is 
the problem of space and there is Hie problem  
maintenance  due  to  scarcity   of 

 

water. What will happen if this Bill is passed 
? We will have to construct more jails and 
throw all these persons into jails. Actually 
nobody is interested in this inhuman practice. 
Neither the scavenger nor the public is 
interested, but there is no alternative. Without 
making a provision for all these things, if this 
Bill is passed, we will be doing more harm to 
the society. 

So, my suggestion is, first you provide 
funds liberally either through bank loans or in 
the form of subsidy. Then you create 
awareness. Let us educate the masses and 
make it a mass movement. Let us take 
voluntary organisations into confidence. After 
providing thesi things if anybody continues 
this practice, then he should be punished. 
Without providing all these things we are 
bringing lorward this Bill. If adequate funds 
are not given and the Bill is passed, it will do 
more harm than good to the society. 

These are my views on this     Bill. It Is lef 
to the Government. 
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SHRIMATI SHEILA KAUL : I am 
grateful to Shri Raju, Dr. Thulasi, Shri 
Gautam and Shri Han Singh who have given 
their useful suggestions on this Bill. 

This Bill had been pending for a long time. 
It being such an obnoxious practice, the 
Government was vary keen to get the Bill 
passed. Therefore, it came through during this 
Session. 

Under the scheme, the large, covered is 500 
towns annually. The scheme is being operated 
through IIUDCO by providing a mix of 
subsidy and loan through the State 
Governments. There are three categories of 
latrines that can be made and there are three 
categories of people who can do it. They are 
the economically weaker sections, the lower-
income groups and the middle-income and the 
higher-income groups, to whom the help can 
given. For the EWS category there is a 
subsifly of Rs. 445 and a loan of 50 per cent 
and the beneficiary's contribution is 5 per 
cent. If the Government wants to help with 
this 5 per cent amount, they can do so.  For 
the   lower 
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income group, 25 per cent is subsidy, 60 per 
cent is loan and 15 per cent is contribution of 
the beneficiary. For the middle-income group 
and the higher-income group, there is no 
subsidy. Loan is 75 per cent and the 
contribution of the beneficiary is 25 per cent. 
This scheme has been in operation for the last 
many years. Since the HUDCO took over this 
scheme in 1989, during the last four years 
more tfntn 7.5 lakh latrines have been 
converted. In addition it has assisted in 
constructing more than 7 lakh new wet 
latrines. 

I may also inform the hou. Members that 
we have given a lot of powers to the 
Panchayati Raj system and the Nagar Palikas 
under the lecently passed Panchayati Raj and 
Nagar Palika Bills. Under this we have given a 
whole lot of responsibilities to them Since we 
do not wish to interfere in the working of the 
States, we have requsstcd them to take over 
the responsibility. You will be glad to know 
that they can operate in each focal city and 
they have full freedom of action. The Central 
Government does not want to interfere in their 
work. 

Hari Singh Ji has given some suggestions 
about giving some commission to tbem on 
fertiliser and cow-dung. 

Well, all that can be given and ;he local 
bod-es can be asked to do this job and if they 
do this job and help them and give their view 
points, I am sure, the States themselves will 
help them cut because we can't interfere in the 
day-to-day working like this. We only lay 
down the policy. If they so desire, they can 
take up those policies and work for the 
people. If my learned colleagues here from 
different States ask their State Governments, I 
am sure, people will come forward because 
this is a thing that should be there 

I want to provide some more information  
as  to  what has been  done.      The 
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number of towns that have been declared 
scavenger-free is 468. The number of 
scavengers liberated is 52,770. The number of 
towns covered is 760. The number of units 
constructed is 7,14,653. The number of units 
converted is 7,52,626. So there is progress. 
You will be glad to know that a beginning has 
been made, i think, in due course, with the 
help of all of voti this would be a thing to be 
taiked about and be proud of. 

So with this, I would request the hon. 
Members to vote for this Bill which has been 
pending for a long time. 

THB VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED S1B-TEY 
RAZI) : The question is • "That the Bill to 
provide for the prohibition o' employment 
manual scavengers as well as construction or 
continuance of dry lat-trines and for the 
regulation of construction and maintenance of 
water-seal latrines and for matters connected 
therewith or incidental thereto, as passed by 
the Lok Sabha, be taken  into  consideration." 

The motion was adopted. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-TEY 
RAZI) : We shall now take up clause-by-
clause consideration of  the  Bill. 

Clause 2 to 24 were added to the Bill. 

Clause 1, the Enacting Formula, the 
Preamble and the Title were added to the 

.Bill.  

SHRIMATI SHEILA KAUL . Sir, I beg to 
move : "That the Bill be passed." 

The question was put and the motion was 
adopted. 

 

THE SALARY, ALLOWANCES AND 

PENSION OF MEMBERS OF PARLIA-

MENT (AMENDMENT) BILL, 1993 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SYED SIB-
TEY RAZI) : Dr. Abrar Ahmed. 

 


